
 

Lloyd White 

Head of Democratic Services 

London Borough of Hillingdon, 

3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 

www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

 Putting our residents first 

   

Corporate Services 
and Partnerships 
Policy Overview 
Committee 

  

Councillors on the Committee 
 
Scott Seaman-Digby, (Chairman) 

Richard Mills, (Vice-Chairman) 

Wayne Bridges 

Jazz Dhillon 

Beulah East 

Duncan Flynn 

Raymond Graham 

Henry Higgins 

Robin Sansarpuri  

   

Date: THURSDAY, 4 JANUARY 
2018 
 

 

Time: 7.30 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 4 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

  

Published: Thursday, 21 December 2017 

 Contact:  Luke Taylor 
Tel: 01895 250693 
Email: ltaylor3@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 

This Agenda is available online at:  
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=243&Year=0 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
Useful information for  
residents and visitors 
 
 
Travel and parking 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services. Please enter from the 
Council’s main reception where you will be 
directed to the Committee Room.  
 
Accessibility 
 
For accessibility options regarding this agenda 
please contact Democratic Services.  For those 
hard of hearing an Induction Loop System is 
available for use in the various meeting rooms.  
 
Attending, reporting and filming of meetings 
 
For the public part of this meeting, residents and the media are welcomed to attend, and if 
they wish, report on it, broadcast, record or film proceedings as long as it does not disrupt 
proceedings. It is recommended to give advance notice to ensure any particular 
requirements can be met. The Council will provide a seating area for residents/public, an 
area for the media and high speed WiFi access to all attending. The officer shown on the 
front of this agenda should be contacted for further information and will be available at the 
meeting to assist if required. Kindly ensure all mobile or similar devices on silent mode. 
 
Please note that the Council may also record or film this meeting and publish this online. 
 
Emergency procedures 
 
If there is a FIRE, you will hear a continuous alarm. Please follow the signs to the nearest 
FIRE EXIT and assemble on the Civic Centre forecourt. Lifts must not be used unless 
instructed by a Fire Marshal or Security Officer. 
 
In the event of a SECURITY INCIDENT, follow instructions issued via the tannoy, a Fire 
Marshal or a Security Officer. Those unable to evacuate using the stairs, should make their 
way to the signed refuge locations. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

About this Committee 

 

This Policy Overview Committee (POC) will undertake reviews in the areas covered by the 
Administration and Finance Directorates and can establish a working party (with another 
POC if desired) to undertake reviews if, for example, a topic is cross-cutting.  
 
This Policy Overview Committee will consider and comment on budget and service plan 
proposals for the Administration and Finance Directorates. 
 
The Cabinet Forward Plan is a standing item on the Committee’s agenda.  
 
The Committee will not consider call-ins of Executive decisions or investigate individual 
complaints about the Council’s services. 
 
To perform the policy overview role outlined above in relation to the following matters: 
 

1. Democratic Services 
2. Localism 
3. Central Services, incl. Human Resources, ICT, Communications & Legal 

Services 
4. Capital programme, property, construction & facilities management  
5. Financial Planning & Financial Services  
6. Enforcement and anti-fraud activities  
7. Procurement 
8. Performance Improvement 
9. Economic development & town centres and regeneration 
10. Local commerce, employment, skills and job creation 
11. Local Strategic Partnership and Sustainable Community Strategy; 
12. Community engagement, partnerships and the voluntary sector 
13. Equalities and Community Cohesion 
14. Community Safety  
15. Public Safety & Civil Protection  
16. Energy use and carbon reduction  
17. Health & Safety 
18. Any functions not included within the remit of the other Policy Overview 

Committees 
19. Cross-cutting reviews that cover the remit of other Committees 



 

 

Agenda 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

1 Apologies for absence  
 

2 Declarations of Interest  
 

3 Minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 2017 1 - 6 
 

4 Exclusion of Press and Public  
 

5 'Homophobic, Biphobic & Transphobic Bullying' Review 7 - 8 
 

6 2018/19 Budget Proposals for Services within the remit of Corporate 
Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee 

9 - 20 
 

7 'Employee Induction & Retention' Review 21 - 46 
 

8 Forward Plan 47 - 50 
 

9 Work Programme 2017/2018 51 - 54 
 



_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

- Page 1 - 

Minutes 

 

 

Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy 
Overview Committee 
Tuesday, 7 November 2017 
Meeting held at Committee Room 4 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 
Published on:  
Come into effect on: Immediately (or call-in date) 

 

 Members Present:  
Councillors Scott Seaman-Digby (Chairman) 
Richard Mills (Vice-Chairman) 
Jazz Dhillon 
Wayne Bridges 
Duncan Flynn 
Henry Higgins 
Robin Sansarpuri 
 
Apologies:  
Councillors Beulah East and Raymond Graham 
 
Officers Present:  
Chris Scott, Service Delivery Manager (Early Intervention Services for Children and 
Young People) 
Mike Talbot, Workforce and Organisational Development Manager 
Luke Taylor, Democratic Services Officer 
 

33. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr East and Cllr Graham. 
 

34. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

35. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 21 SEPTEMBER 2017 
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2017 were 
approved as a correct record. 
 

36. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
It was agreed that all items would be considered in public. 
 

37. EMPLOYEE INDUCTION AND RETENTION REVIEW 
 
The Council's Workforce and Organisational Development Manager was in 
attendance at the meeting to speak to the Committee as part of the review's witness 
session. 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

- Page 2 - 
 

 
The Committee heard that the Council monitored both voluntary and involuntary 
turnover on a quarterly basis, and that turnover of staff is beneficial to an 
organisation as new staff members can bring with them new ideas, which improves 
innovation, while a low turnover rate can lead to stagnation. Furthermore, "exit 
interviews" were ready to be implemented at the Council, which will help Human 
Resources to better understand the reasoning behind employees' decisions to leave 
the organisation. 
 
It was confirmed that the target for voluntary turnover within the Council is 10%. Last 
year, the Council saw a 10.5% turnover rate, and this year it currently stands at 11%, 
although the period that historically has seen the most turnover has already passed, 
so the figure may yet decrease. By including involuntary turnover in this turnover 
figure, it rises to roughly 18%.  
 
Members heard that staff turnover in specific areas of the Council were monitored 
and reported on a monthly basis. This allowed the organisation to implement 
retention schemes in areas of concern that ensured the Council did not see higher 
rates of staff turnover than desirable. One such scheme took place in Children's 
Social Care, an area which nationally saw a high turnover rate, and involved 
financial remuneration for those employees who confirmed that they would remain at 
the Council for a specific period. This "tie-in" was one year, as it was agreed this 
worked better than two years, which was used previously. These retention payments 
were also used for critical employees who were halfway through delivering a project. 
In these cases, a retention payment could be placed on an employee, based on a 
percentage of their salary and post, and this payment would be repaid in full if the 
employee left the organisation before delivering the project. 
 
It was noted that 64% of staff were on permanent contracts, but there are trends to 
suggest that agency staff are actively looking to remain agency workers, and were 
not looking for permanent employment. The Committee heard that, nationwide, 
people are choosing higher pay rates over better job security, and despite not being 
eligible for pension contributions, agency staff were still able to receive annual leave 
and other benefits, while also having pay parity with permanent staff. However, it 
was confirmed that long-term employees preferred the whole benefits package they 
receive over the hourly rate, and instances of employees looking to become agency 
workers are rare. 
 
Responding to Members' questioning, it was confirmed that situations had arisen 
where a senior member of a team had been headhunted and had taken some of the 
Council's employees with them to their new place of employment, but it was noted 
that this has also been a recruitment tactic by the Council as it used existing 
networks to find potential staff members. 
 
The Workforce and Organisational Development Manager confirmed that the overall 
package received by employees was very competitive, the pension contribution was 
unmatched, staff received better annual leave than the average that increased after 
five and ten years of service, and employees received four days of free parking, 
which was rare in London. It was confirmed that discussions were ongoing with the 
Employee Forum to review other staff benefits, such as online discounts and 

Page 2



_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

- Page 3 - 
 

reduced ticket prices for events. Furthermore, the provision of wellbeing activities at 
the Council, such as yoga, was good for work culture. Members also heard that the 
Employee Forum was involved in allocating money to improve the Civic Centre and 
work environment. 
 
With regards to remuneration, the Committee were informed that benchmark salaries 
in key policy areas were monitored to ensure that neighbouring authorities did not 
increase pay and challenge the organisation for key employees. Meanwhile, the 
Council remained in the top quartile of social care payers, which eliminated money 
as a potential hurdle when employing staff in these key roles. 
 
Councillors heard that potential improvements could be made to flexible and mobile 
working as this was considered very attractive to new roles in today's society and 
would improve competitiveness, particularly among social workers, who received 
very flexible working at other organisations. 
 
It was confirmed to Members that the Council maintained a strong commitment to 
professional development, and access to training, among other development 
opportunities, was very advanced. Responding to questioning, the Workforce and 
Organisational Development Manager confirmed that with regards to the Council 
funding employees' Professional Education Training, the Council enforced a two-
year "tie-in" period. 
 
The Committee was informed that it was important that the culture and reputation of 
the organisation was visible to staff, and that there was a level of self-fulfilment that 
came with working for the Council and engaging with residents. 
 
Members agreed that the witness evidence received at previous meetings suggested 
that the induction process was fit for purpose, and the intranet system was working 
well, but retention strategies may require enhancing. It was, however, noted, that 
there was not much in the induction process with regards to new staff members 
engaging outside their own department.  
 
The Committee noted that a series of questions regarding staff induction and 
retention were to be sent out to private companies in the Borough to better 
understand the approach taken by private companies to these two aspects of 
staffing, and this evidence would be collated ahead of the next meeting and 
incorporated into the review. 
 
Councillors noted that the review was heading towards its final stages, with 
recommendations and the final report due to be brought before the Committee at its 
next scheduled meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: That the witness evidence was noted, and the review progressed 
to its next stage. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

- Page 4 - 
 

38. HOMOPHOBIC, BIPHOBIC AND TRANSPHOBIC BULLYING REVIEW 
 
At the meeting of the Committee on 21 September 2017, approval was given to the 
Committee's next review topic on homophobic, biphobic and transphobic bullying in 
the Borough. 
 
The Council's Service Manager for Targeted Programmes in Early Intervention and 
Prevention Services was in attendance at the meeting to speak to the Committee as 
part of the review's witness evidence.  
 
Members heard that Targeted Programmes is a division of the Early Intervention, 
Prevention and SEND Services, commissioned to engage children, adolescents, 
young adults and adult parents who are vulnerable to negative outcomes in relation 
to their life experiences. It responds to priority groups identified as being at risk of 
social, health, and economic exclusion, including young people who self-define as 
LGBTIQ (Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transsexual, Intersex and Questioning). Within 
this context, Targeted Programmes was commissioned to deliver two key 
programmes that sought to benefit the lives of LGBTIQ young people: 'OUTreach' 
drop-in service, and 'KISS' Sex and Relationships Education Programmes. 
 
The Service Manager confirmed that, in 2013, a report entitled "An Assessment of 
Homophobic Bullying and Health and Wellbeing amongst Young Lesbian, Gay, 
Bisexual and Transgender People in Hillingdon" was produced, and identified a 
range of concerns amongst LGBTIQ young people; the report was well received but 
never formally adopted into policy. Early Intervention, Prevention and SEND 
Services responded to the recommendation that stated the Council should "offer a 
social network group for young LGBT people in a safe environment", through the 
establishment of new public-facing services for LGBTIQ young people. 
 
The Committee was informed that the Council established a LGBTIQ programme in 
partnership with MOSAIC Youth Centre, which was branded 'MOSAIC Hillingdon' 
and launched in September 2014. The programme was delivered as an informal 
drop-in activity, but despite the activity of the Council and MOSAIC to publicise the 
programme, an initial level of interest was not maintained. The loss of staffing 
capacity to deliver the programme and MOSAIC Youth Centre's funding challenges 
meant that it was agreed to terminate the partnership, and the programme closed in 
2016. 
 
It was noted that in early 2017, Targeted Programmes established a directly-
managed programme for LGBTIQ young people, provisionally branded as 
'OUTreach LGBTIQ Programme'. This programme is currently delivered on a bi-
weekly basis for an hour, and to date, seven young people are engaged on a 
sustained basis. The Target Programmes' Sexual Health and Wellbeing 
Programmes unit also deliver a range of sexual health and relationships education 
programmes for young people, which are commissioned by secondary schools, 
young people's centres, residential children's homes, and young adult hostels in the 
Borough. These programmes address issues relevant to all young people, have 
engaged over 850 service users since April 2017, and are delivered using 'sexual 
identity-neutral' language to avoid a presumption of heterosexuality and present 
LGBTIQ identities as being of equal validity with a range of sexual orientations. 

Page 4



_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

- Page 5 - 
 

Members asked how many schools, youth clubs, or other outside bodies had been 
visited, and officers stated that this figure would be confirmed and the Committee 
following the meeting. 
 
Responding to questioning from Members, officers confirmed that the youths 
targeted by the OUTreach programme were aged eight and above, but if this 
became an issue for those below the age of eight, they could also be approached. 
The sexual health and wellbeing programme was targeted to those youths aged 12-
13 and over, to ensure that it was developmentally and age appropriate. It was also 
confirmed that the interaction between young LGBTIQ people was a balancing act, 
as inclusiveness was welcomed but many preferred to attend groups for LGBT 
youths only to improve their confidence, before speaking to other groups that include 
heterosexual youths. The programmes work to help develop individual capabilities, 
and confidence is very important to this. 
 
It was noted that secondary school pupils would be more likely to come into contact 
with LGBTIQ youths, as pupils of this age move towards peer groups and better 
understand their identity, often socialising with more like-minded people, but it was 
vital to ensure a culture of acceptance and normality around LGBTIQ issues. The 
Service Manager confirmed that society on the whole is now much more accepting 
of LGBTIQ people, and the work of the Targeted Programmes Team tended to take 
place in problematic areas, with those involved in the programmes more likely to be 
socially isolated. 
 
The Committee commented that it was vital for positive affirmation at these 
programmes, and asked whether youths who engaged in homophobic behaviour or 
language were ejected from the youth clubs. It was confirmed that this would be the 
case, and the youth groups were fostering a culture of acceptance, noting that there 
were signs at the youth clubs which informed anyone who engaged in abusive 
behaviour that they would not be able to remain at the group.  
 
Councillors heard that in the autumn of 2017, the OUTreach programme offer will 
expand to a weekly session, to be delivered in accordance with consultation 
outcomes with current service users, and the OUTreach satellite programme at 
Uxbridge College will continue to be developed in partnership with the college 
Student Union. Target Programmes will develop its preventative education 
programme to offer a defined 'menu' of issues-based services for young people, and 
within this 'menu', a wider range or LGBTIQ-specific workshops will be created to 
specifically address Homophobic, Biphobic and Transphobic bullying.  
 
The Committee agreed that it was vital to be more proactive talking about LGBT 
issues, and ensure that intolerance was not tolerated.  
 
RESOLVED: That the witness evidence was noted, and the review progressed 
to its next stage. 
 

39. UPDATE ON REVIEW IMPLEMENTATION - SAFETY AT THE CIVIC CENTRE 
 
At a previous Committee meeting, Councillors requested an update on the 2011 
review into "Personal safety of Members of the Council when meeting with members 

Page 5



_________________________________________________________________________ 
 

- Page 6 - 
 

of the public". Comments were sought from the Group Offices and officers 
responsible for security at the Council, and the comments were outlined in the 
report. 
 
The Committee noted the responses, and commented that bag checks and physical 
checks did not take place when members of the public attending meetings at the 
Civic Centre. It was requested that this suggestion was presented to the next Whips 
meeting. 
 
Councillors agreed that when safety issues arise, they are dealt with very well by 
officers and security staff.  
 
RESOLVED: That the report was noted, and the following action taken by 
officers in consultation with the Chief Whips: 
 

1. Remind Members, that if they had concerns over a particular constituent 
they are in contact with, the Group Offices can confidentially check the 
Council's Restricted Persons Register to establish whether further 
contact should be made;  

2. Update the Personal Safety Protocol booklet to include the above, along 
with the emergency phone line and details of rooms with panic alarms; 

3. Re-send the updated Personal Safety Protocol; 
4. Recommend to the Head of Democratic Services that a workshop for 

Members regarding personal safety be added to the 2018 Induction 
arrangements; and 

5. Consult on bag checks and physical checks for members of the public 
who are attending meetings at the Civic Centre. 

 
40. FORWARD PLAN 

 
RESOLVED: That the forward plan was noted. 
 

41. WORK PROGRAMME 2017/2018 
 
RESOLVED: That the work programme was noted, subject to the following 
changes: 
 

• The report regarding Volunteering in Hillingdon be moved to the 
meeting on 7 March 2017. 

 
 

Page 6



 

Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 4 January 2018 
 

Part I – Members, Public and Press 
 
 

'HOMOPHOBIC, BIPHOBIC AND TRANSPHOBIC BULLYING' REVIEW 
 

Contact Officer: Luke Taylor 
Telephone: 01895 250 693 

 
 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
The Committee confirmed its minor review on the topic of Homophobic, Biphobic and 
Transphobic Bullying, and requested witness sessions to hear evidence regarding the review. 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE   
  
The Committee is asked to listen to the witness session, note the evidence, and progress 
the review to the next stage. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 

• At the Committee meeting on 21 September 2017, a scoping report outlining potential terms 
of reference, witness testimonies and lines of enquiry were agreed, and a review into 
Homophobic, Biphobic and Transphobic Bullying was confirmed. 

 

• At this meeting, Members can discuss further information on the review using the terms of 
reference that were set at the last meeting: 

 
1. To examine how the Council services, schools, and other relevant departments identify 

and support those who are experiencing, or have experienced, homophobic, biphobic or 

transphobic bullying. 

2. To examine relevant work by this Council, other Councils, and voluntary sectors to 

identify opportunities and methods to tackle homophobic, biphobic and transphobic 

bullying in support of the Council's wider equality objectives and the aims of the review. 

3. To make practical, prudent recommendations to Cabinet (and other bodies if applicable) 

from the Committee's findings to support residents experiencing homophobic, biphobic 

and transphobic bullying, and reduce instances of bullying within the Borough. 

 

• Ms Sarah Rose, Senior Account Manager at Stonewall, will be in attendance at the meeting, 
and Mr Colin Tucker, Headteacher of Ryefield Primary School, will also attend to discuss his 
experiences of the issue in schools with the Committee. 

 
 

Agenda Item 5

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 4 January 2018 
 

Part I – Members, Public and Press 
 

2018/19 BUDGET PROPOSALS FOR SERVICES WITHIN THE REMIT OF 

CORPORATE SERVICES & PARTNERSHIPS POLICY OVERVIEW COMMITTEE 

Contact Officers: Iain Watters / Gemma McNamara 
Telephone: 01895 556 357 / 01895 250 277 

REASON FOR ITEM 

1. To comply with the Budget and Policy Framework procedure rules as part of the agreed 
consultation process for the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account budgets, 
alongside the Council's Capital Programme, this report sets out the draft revenue budget 
and Capital Programme for the services within the remit of the Corporate Services & 
Partnerships Policy Overview Committee, along with indicative projections for the following 
four years. Following consideration by Cabinet on 14 December 2017, these proposals are 
now under consultation, and the proposals for each Group are being discussed at the 
January cycle of Policy Overview Committees. 

2. Cabinet will next consider the budget proposals on 15 February 2017, and the report will 
include comments received from Policy Overview Committees. At the meeting on 15 
February 2018, Cabinet will make recommendations to full Council regarding the budget 
and Council Tax levels for 2018/19, who will meet to agree the budgets and Council Tax for 
2018/19 on 22 February 2018. 

3. The Committee needs to consider the budget proposals as they relate to the Chief 
Executive's Office and Finance Groups and to the relevant service areas within the 
Residents Services Group, but within the corporate context and the constraints applying as 
a result of the aggregate financial position of the authority. 

OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 

It is recommended that the Committee notes the budget projections contained in the 
report and comments as appropriate on the combined budget proposals put forward by 
the Chief Executive's Office and Finance Groups and to the relevant service areas within 
the Residents Services Group, within the context of the corporate budgetary position. 

INFORMATION 

Background 

4. The Council continues to operate within the constraints of Government's deficit reduction 
programme, which has seen a sweeping reduction in central government funding since 
2010/11 and is set to continue until at least the end of the decade. Alongside this reduction 
in funding, continuing demographic and demand pressures, and a return to an inflationary 
environment over the medium term, will necessitate delivery of further substantial savings.  
This first report to Cabinet on the budget for 2018/19 quantifies the financial challenge faced 
by the Council, and outlines an approach to meeting this challenge whilst continuing to 'Put 
Residents First'. 

5. This is the first report to Cabinet on the budget for 2018/19, building upon the position 
outlined in the 2017/18 budget report to Council in February 2017. In February, the savings 
requirement for 2018/19 was estimated to be £16,117k, which has been revised downwards 
following the announcement in March 2017 of £2,947k Improved Better Care Fund monies 
to support Adult Social Care and £2,602k Collection Fund surpluses amongst a number of 

Agenda Item 6

Page 9



 

Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 4 January 2018 
 

Part I – Members, Public and Press 
 

minor revisions to projections. The resulting budget gap for 2018/19 therefore stands at 
£10,197k, marginally lower than the £11,600k estimate from July 2017, rising to £56,107k 
over the five year MTFF period. 

6. Groups have been developing savings proposals sufficient to meet this externally driven 
budget gap and respond to increases in cost pressures. In addition to this work across 
directorates, a comprehensive review of the corporate elements of the budget has been 
undertaken since February, capturing funding, inflation and capital financing. During the 
early summer and again in the autumn, a series of challenge sessions were held to affirm 
the budget position. Each session followed a similar format reviewing: 

• The 2016/17 outturn, particularly any on-going issues; 
• The current position in 2017/18 - both monitoring and savings delivery; 
• Existing and emerging pressures which need to be addressed in the 2018/19 budget 

and forecasts for future years; 
• Progress on the development of savings proposals for 2018/19 and beyond; 
• Identification of any potential growth or invest-to-save bids; and 
• Capital programme requirements. 

7. The consultation budget represents the combined outputs from these sessions, with 
sufficient savings proposals having been developed to bridge the 2018/19 budget gap. The 
proposed budget has been balanced without recourse to reductions in service levels or 
levying the Social Care precept while freezing Council Tax for all residents for a tenth 
successive year and funding the freeze for older persons into a twelfth year in 2018/19. 

The Budget and Policy Framework Rules 

8. The consultation on the budget proposals commenced on 15 December 2017 following 
decisions taken by Cabinet on 14 December 2017. 

9. There will be a further consideration by Cabinet of the budget proposals on 15 February 
2018, including comments from Policy Overview Committees. These will be collated and 
reported back to Cabinet by the Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview 
Committee. Council will be requested to approve the Cabinet’s proposals on 22 February 
2017, and if approved without further amendment they will be effective immediately. 

Corporate Summary 

10. While the focus of the discussion for the Policy Overview Committee should be the specific 
services within its remit, it is important that this discussion is conducted in the context of the 
overall corporate financial position. The Council's financial performance during 2017/18 
remains strong, with an underspend of £980k projected across revenue budgets as at 
September (Month 7) and £14,460k of the £15,508k savings programme either already 
banked or on track for delivery within the financial year. The balance of £1,048k remains on 
track to be delivered in full in future years. 

11. The budget proposals included in this report represents the Cabinet's budget strategy for 
2018/19. Revenue budget proposals have been developed to deliver a zero increase in 
Council Tax for 2018/19, avoid implementation of the Social Care Precept, maintain 
balances and reserves at well above the minimum recommended level and continue to 
protect frontline services. The final funding settlement for 2018/19 and confirmation of a 

Page 10



 

Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 4 January 2018 
 

Part I – Members, Public and Press 
 

number of levies payable to other public authorities will not be available until the new year 
and so the budget has therefore been drafted on the latest estimated position. 

12. Locally raised income from Council Tax and Business Rates is expected to grow by £4,905k 
as a result of strong growth in taxbases, although this is off-set by a £7,172k anticipated 
reduction in government funding, necessitating the identification of savings to deliver a 
balanced budget. The two year 100% Business Rates Retention Pilot Pool for London is 
projected to deliver an additional £5,400k income to support local services in 2018/19, 
which enables the planned Use of General Balances to be reduced from £5,000k in 2017/18 
to £950k in 2018/19. 

13. The principal challenge in delivering a balanced budget for 2018/19 is in developing a 
programme of savings to meet the combined challenge of falling levels of government 
funding alongside inflationary pressures and the costs of increasing demand for services.  
Development of £7,145k savings proposals and £3,052k initiatives to contain growth in 
demand-led Contingency budgets - primarily through contract renewals and securing 
additional contributions from health partners - are sufficient to manage a potential budget 
gap of £10,197k as detailed in Table 1 below: 

Table 1: Budget Requirement 

  
Movement 

from 2017/18 

2018/19 
Budget 

Requirement 

  £'000 £'000 

Council Tax Revenues (4,230) (112,929) 

Business Rates Revenues (675) (52,989) 

100% Retention Pilot Pool (5,400) (5,400) 

Revenue Support Grant 6,389 (13,124) 

Other Central Government Funding 783 (34,386) 

Planned Use of General Balances 4,050 (950) 

Total Resources 2018/19 917 (219,778) 

Budget Requirement 
 

  

Roll Forward Budget 
 

220,695 

Inflation 4,577   

Corporate Items (613)   

Contingency (Growth) 3,421   

Contingency(Management Action) (3.052) 
 

New Priority Growth 1,895   

Savings Programme (7,145)   

Budget Requirement 2018/19 (917) 219,778 

Budget Surplus 0 0 

14. This draft budget includes £2,699k revenue provision for Priority Growth, funded from a 
combination of £554k brought forward funding, £250k Earmarked Reserves and £1,895k 
additional resources included in the 2018/19 budget. £250k of this sum remains 
uncommitted at this stage, with the remainder consisting of: 

a. £1,000k resources committed to meeting capital financing costs associated with the 
Council's flagship School Expansions Programme; 

Page 11



 

Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 4 January 2018 
 

Part I – Members, Public and Press 
 

b. £576k provision to support operation of a new Waste and Recycling Centre in the 
south of the borough, complementing the existing offer at New Years Green Lane; 

c. £84k investment in a Bulky Waste Collection service for residents; 

d. £250k per annum funding for the Metropolitan Police to 2022/23 in order to support 
the continued operation of Uxbridge Police Station, alongside further investment 
outlined in the capital section of this report; 

e. £200k support for an expanded youth offer from the Council, including provision for a 
grant programme to support independent youth groups; 

f. £200k additional funding for Counter Fraud Activity to ensure the Council protects its 
finances; and, 

g. £139k further growth for the expanded Museums and Archives Service in addition to 
the £140k allocated in 2017/18. 

15. The Council's capital programme has also been refreshed, with £386,370k of planned 
investment in local infrastructure over the period to 2022/23 including: continued delivery of 
school places to meet the needs of a growing population, provision for a new swimming 
pool in the Yiewsley / West Drayton area, further investment in the borough's highways, 
continued investment in bowls clubs, reprovision of the Hillingdon Outdoor Activity Centre in 
response to High Speed 2 and commencement of a rolling borough-wide programme of 
library and leisure centre refurbishment. 

16. Alongside General Fund budgets, the Council's Housing Revenue Account budgets have 
been prepared to deliver a 1% reduction in rents for existing tenants in 2018/19, alongside a 
programme of investment in existing and new housing stock - including for 545 new 
affordable homes for residents by 2022/23, partly financed through the reinvestment of 
Right to Buy sale proceeds. 

2018/19 GROUP BUDGET PROPOSALS 

17. Budget proposals relating to services within the remit of Corporate Services & Partnerships 
Policy Overview Committee are presented below, with headline operating budgets for the 
relevant services outlined in Table 2. In addition to these base budgets to support services, 
more volatile or demand-led areas of activity are managed through Development and Risk 
Contingency - with latest projections for 2018/19 expanded upon in the following sections of 
this report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12



 

Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 4 January 2018 
 

Part I – Members, Public and Press 
 

Table 2: Group Budgets within Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview 
Committee Remit 

  

Chief 
Executive's 

Office 
Finance 

Residents 
Services 

Total 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Operating Budget 2017/18 6,320 14,166 21,890 42,376 

Inflation 108 234 471 812 

Priority Growth 0 200 0 200 

Savings  (58) (728) (300) (1,086) 

Operating Budget 2018/19 6,369 13,871 22,061 42,301 

Development & Risk Contingency 

18. The following Contingency Items relate to services within the remit of Corporate Services & 
Partnerships Policy Overview Committee, providing £272k additional funding to meet the 
costs of service delivery in 2018/19. 

a. Uninsured Claims (£291k provision) - The level of contingency funding for 
insurance claims below current excess limits of £100k for Property and £250k for 
other classes is maintained at £291k for 2018/19. In addition to this contingency 
provision and £359k base budget, a dedicated Earmarked Reserve for general 
insurance claims held a further £2,523k at 1 April 2017. 

b. Apprenticeship Levy (£381k provision) - Latest projections for the Council's 
2018/19 Apprenticeship Levy total £381k, which is provided for within Development & 
Risk Contingency. 

c. Additional Investment Income (£400k contingent income) - Greater use of 
strategic and long dated pooled funds is proposed for those cash balances backed by 
the Council's General Reserves, rather than working capital. This approach would 
enable returns in excess of 3% per annum to be secured on an element of the 
Council's cash holdings, outperforming the 0.42% rate of return seen over recent 
months. Taking the £15,000k minimum level of General Fund Reserves as a proxy for 
a cash sum which could be earmarked for longer term investments, this is expected 
secure £400k per annum additional income. 

Priority Growth 

19. As noted above, this draft budget includes £2,699k of growth proposals, including the 
following items relating to services within the remit of Corporate Services & Partnerships 
Policy Overview Committee. 

a. £200k additional funding for Counter Fraud Activity to ensure the Council protects its 
finances. 

 

 

Page 13



 

Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 4 January 2018 
 

Part I – Members, Public and Press 
 

Savings 

20. Savings proposals are focused on increased efficiency and effectiveness, rather than 
reduction in service provision, and fall into four broad themes; Service Transformation, 
Effective Procurement, Income Generation & Commercialisation and Zero Based Reviews. 

a. Service Transformation represents the majority of proposed savings, with items 
presented in this category ranging from the full year effect of previously implemented 
proposals, the implementation of agreed BID Reviews and the expected benefits 
arising from potential new BID Reviews. 

b. Effective Procurement savings are similarly made up of full year effect items and 
proposed reviews of delivery models in a number of areas. 

c. Income Generation & Commercialisation proposals include brought forward items for 
which plans are already in place, and proposed amendments to Fees and Charges 
discussed in the dedicated section below. 

d. Savings proposals from Zero Based Reviews represent budgets which have been 
identified as being surplus to requirements through the line-by-line review of outturn 
2016/17 and similar exercises being undertaken by Finance. 

21. The accompanying appendix to this report provides a full schedule of savings proposals 
within the Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee remit, with 
proposals totalling £1,086k across the relevant service areas. An overview of this 
programme within each Group is outlined in the following paragraphs. 

a. Chief Executive's Office - A total of £58k savings have been developed across the 
Chief Executive's Office, with £27k expected to be secured from a review of staffing 
structures within Learning and Development alongside £31k from Zero Based 
Reviews of budgets. 

b. Finance - Within Finance, £728k proposals are included within this draft budget, 
including £526k Service Transformation savings and £202k from Zero Based 
Reviews. Service Transformation proposals include £375k from a BID Review of the 
Finance function, £95k from Revenues & Benefits linked to digital strategy and £56k 
from a review of Health and Safety within Business Assurance. Zero Based Review 
proposals include £120k from Added Years Pension Costs, £25k from External Audit 
Fees and £57k from a range of other minor items across the Group. 

c. Residents Services - The £300k savings within the Residents Services savings 
programme within the remit of Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview 
Committee are to be delivered through the renewal of various Facilities Management 
contracts. 

22. In addition to these service specific proposals, there are a further £628k Cross-Cutting 
Savings proposals relating to the remit of the Corporate Services & Partnerships POC.  
Throughout the remainder of the budget setting process and into the new financial year, it is 
anticipated that an element of these savings will be transferred into Directorate budgets as 
specific proposals are further developed. This total includes £250k from a broader review of 
the Council's Digital Strategy intended to streamline customer contact in relation to more 
straight forward issues, a target of £278k is retained for the further benefits of Effective 

Page 14



 

Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 4 January 2018 
 

Part I – Members, Public and Press 
 

Procurement impacting on 2018/19 and a new £100k saving to reflect the planned roll out of 
a Supplier Early Payment Programme. 

Capital Programme 

23. The Council's current capital programme, as approved by Cabinet and Council in February 
2017, continues to be focused on the provision of sufficient school places to meet rising 
demand across the borough. This programme has been reviewed and expanded to reflect a 
number of new initiatives as outlined above. The following key items within the 2018/19 
Capital Programme fall within the remit of Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy 
Overview Committee: 

a. Civic Centre Works Programme (£500k budget in 2018/19) 

b. Corporate Technology & Innovation Programme (£1,064k budget in 2018/19) 

c. Property Works Programme (£480k budget in 2018/19) 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

THE COUNCIL'S BUDGET: MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL FORECAST 2018/19 - 2022/23, 
presented to 14 December 2017 Cabinet Meeting 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
's

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
8

/1
9

 -
 2

0
2

2
/2

3
  

M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 P

O
C

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
2

/2
3

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
T

h
e

m
e

£
(0

0
0

s
)

£
(0

0
0

s
)

£
(0

0
0

s
)

£
(0

0
0

s
)

£
(0

0
0

s
)

F
u

ll
 Y

e
a

r 
E

ff
e

c
t 

o
f 

P
ri

o
r 

Y
e

a
r 

S
a

v
in

g
s

0
(1

,7
1

4
)

(1
,8

9
4

)
(1

,8
9

4
)

(1
,8

9
4

)

C
h

ie
f 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

's
 O

ff
ic

e

H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 -

 L
e

a
rn

in
g

 &
 D

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

R
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 w

it
h

in
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

e
a

m
 t

o
 r

e
a

lig
n

 t
h

e
 s

ta
ff

in
g

 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
 t

o
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

lo
a

d
.

(2
7

)
0

0
0

0

H
u

m
a

n
 R

e
s

o
u

rc
e

s
 -

 Z
e

ro
 B

a
s

e
d

 R
e

v
ie

w

Z
B

R
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

’s
 O

ff
ic

e
.

(3
1

)
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x

e
c

u
ti

v
e

's
 O

ff
ic

e
 S

a
v
in

g
s

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
(5

8
)

0
0

0
0

F
in

a
n

c
e

B
u

s
in

e
s

s
 A

s
s

u
ra

n
c

e
 -

 R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

a
fe

ty

T
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 S

a
fe

ty
 t

e
a

m
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
v
e

rh
e

a
d

s
 a

n
d

 c
re

a
te

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

, 
re

s
ili

e
n

t 
te

a
m

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 H
&

S
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il.

(5
6

)
0

0
0

0

F
in

a
n

c
e

 -
 P

h
a

s
e

 1

P
h

a
s
e

 1
 o

f 
th

e
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 B
ID

 r
e

v
ie

w
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 r
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 f

in
a

n
c
e

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 m

o
d

e
l,
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 b

u
d

g
e

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
.

(2
5

0
)

0
0

0
0

F
in

a
n

c
e

 -
 P

h
a

s
e

 2

P
h

a
s
e

 2
 o

f 
th

e
 F

in
a

n
c
e

 r
e

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

c
a

p
tu

ri
n

g
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

w
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 f
ro

m
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
v
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 b
u

d
g

e
t 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

(1
2

5
)

0
0

0
0

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
s

 &
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 -

 D
ig

it
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 &

 S
e

lf
 S

e
rv

ic
e

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
o

n
 T

e
a

m
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 t

h
e

 s
e

lf
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 m
o

d
u

le
 w

h
e

re
b

y
 B

e
n

e
fi
ts

 

c
la

im
a

n
ts

 c
a

n
 a

p
p

ly
 f

o
r 

b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 o
n

lin
e

. 
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
n

 o
n

g
o

in
g

 d
ig

it
a

l 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
a

 s
e

lf
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

 m
o

d
u

le
 w

ill
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t.

(9
5

)
0

0
0

0

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

S
a

v
in

g
s

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 w

it
h

in
 r

e
m

it
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 &

 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 P

O
C

N
e

t 
V

a
ri

a
ti

o
n

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1

7
/1

8
 B

u
d

g
e

t

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

Z
e

ro
 B

a
s
e

d
 R

e
v
ie

w

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

Page 17



T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
's

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
8

/1
9

 -
 2

0
2

2
/2

3
  

M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 P

O
C

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
2

/2
3

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
T

h
e

m
e

£
(0

0
0

s
)

£
(0

0
0

s
)

£
(0

0
0

s
)

£
(0

0
0

s
)

£
(0

0
0

s
)

S
a

v
in

g
s

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 w

it
h

in
 r

e
m

it
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 &

 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 P

O
C

N
e

t 
V

a
ri

a
ti

o
n

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1

7
/1

8
 B

u
d

g
e

t

A
d

d
e

d
 Y

e
a

rs
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 C

o
s

ts

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
d

e
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t 

o
f 

A
d

d
e

d
 Y

e
a

rs
 P

e
n

s
io

n
 c

o
s
ts

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 

d
e

c
lin

e
.

(1
2

0
)

(1
8

0
)

0
0

0

F
in

a
n

c
e

 -
 E

x
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 F

e
e

s

It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 t

o
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
u

lt
 

o
f 

a
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
u

b
lic

 S
e

c
to

r 
A

u
d

it
 A

p
p

o
in

tm
e

n
ts

 

fo
r 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
a

u
d

it
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 s

ta
rt

in
g

 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

8
. 

(2
5

)
0

0
0

0

F
in

a
n

c
e

 Z
B

R
 S

a
v

in
g

s

S
a

v
in

g
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

Z
e

ro
 B

a
s
e

d
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 d
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

.
(5

7
)

0
0

0
0

T
o

ta
l 

F
in

a
n

c
e

 S
a

v
in

g
s

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
(7

2
8

)
(1

8
0

)
0

0
0

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

F
a

c
il

it
ie

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

S
a

v
in

g
s

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 F

a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 b

e
 p

h
a

s
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
M

T
F

F
 p

e
ri

o
d

. 
In

c
lu

d
in

g
 H

a
rd

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

(£
8

.9
m

 o
v
e

r 
1

0
 y

e
a

rs
, 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

e
x
p

ir
e

s
 3

1
/1

0
/1

7
),

 C
a

te
ri

n
g

 (
£

2
.1

m
 o

v
e

r 

3
 y

e
a

rs
, 

e
x
p

ir
e

s
 2

3
/3

/1
8

),
 C

le
a

n
in

g
 (

£
3

.2
m

 o
v
e

r 
3

 y
e

a
rs

, 
e

x
p

ir
e

s
 6

/9
/1

8
) 

a
n

d
 S

e
c
u

ri
ty

 (
£

2
m

 o
v
e

r 
3

 y
e

a
rs

, 
e

x
p

ir
e

s
 1

4
/3

/1
9

).
 

(3
0

0
)

0
0

0
0

T
o

ta
l 

R
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 S

a
v
in

g
s

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
(3

0
0

)
0

0
0

0

Z
e

ro
 B

a
s
e

d
 R

e
v
ie

w

Z
e

ro
 B

a
s
e

d
 R

e
v
ie

w

Z
e

ro
 B

a
s
e

d
 R

e
v
ie

w

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

Page 18



T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
's

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

2
0

1
8

/1
9

 -
 2

0
2

2
/2

3
  

M
e

d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
F

o
re

c
a

s
t

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 P

O
C

2
0

1
8

/1
9

2
0

1
9

/2
0

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
1

/2
2

2
0

2
2

/2
3

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
T

h
e

m
e

£
(0

0
0

s
)

£
(0

0
0

s
)

£
(0

0
0

s
)

£
(0

0
0

s
)

£
(0

0
0

s
)

S
a

v
in

g
s

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 w

it
h

in
 r

e
m

it
 o

f 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 &

 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s
 P

O
C

N
e

t 
V

a
ri

a
ti

o
n

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1

7
/1

8
 B

u
d

g
e

t

C
ro

s
s

-C
u

tt
in

g

C
o

n
ta

c
t 

C
e

n
tr

e
 R

e
v

ie
w

 /
 D

ig
it

a
l 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 D

ig
it
a

l 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 f
o

c
u

s
in

g
 i
n

it
ia

lly
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

w
a

y
s
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
.

(2
5

0
)

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
w

o
rk

C
ro

s
s
 c

u
tt

in
g

 t
a

rg
e

t 
in

c
lu

d
e

d
 t

o
 c

a
p

tu
re

 e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 b

e
n

e
fi
ts

 f
ro

m
 a

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 u

p
c
o

m
in

g
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
e

x
e

rc
is

e
s
 w

it
h

 s
c
o

p
e

 t
o

 

d
e

liv
e

r 
s
a

v
in

g
s
 i
n

 2
0

1
8

/1
9

(2
7

8
)

S
u

p
p

li
e

r 
E

a
rl

y
 P

a
y

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

C
ro

s
s
 c

u
tt

in
g

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

 s
a

v
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 s

u
p

p
lie

r 

re
b

a
te

s
, 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 v

ia
 a

g
re

e
d

 E
a

rl
y
 P

a
y
m

e
n

t 
S

c
h

e
m

e
s
.

(1
0

0
)

T
o

ta
l 

C
ro

s
s

-C
u

tt
in

g
 S

a
v
in

g
s

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
(6

2
8

)
0

0
0

0

T
o

ta
l 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

 &
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s

 S
a

v
in

g
s

 P
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
(1

,7
1

4
)

(1
,8

9
4

)
(1

,8
9

4
)

(1
,8

9
4

)
(1

,8
9

4
)

S
e

rv
ic

e
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 

P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t

In
c
o

m
e

 G
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 &

 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
lis

a
ti
o

n

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 4 January 2018 
 

Part I – Members, Public and Press 
 
 

'EMPLOYEE INDUCTION AND RETENTION' REVIEW 

 
Contact Officer: Luke Taylor 
Telephone: 01895 250 963 

 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
The Committee has considered evidence and information with regards to the review on 
'Employee Induction and Retention', and this information is now contained in a draft report. 

 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE  
  
The Committee is asked to: 
 

1. Comment on and consider the draft review on Employee Induction and Retention. 

2. Delegate authority for the drafting of the Committee's final report to the Clerk and 
Workforce and Organisational Development Manager, under consultation with the 
Chairman. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
1. At the meeting of the Committee held on 15 June 2017, approval was given to the 

Committee's next review topic on 'Employee Induction and Retention' within the Council. 

2. At the following meetings held on 25 July, 21 September and 7 November 2017, the 
Committee considered evidence from the Council's Workforce and Organisational 
Development Manager and a new employee who had recently experienced the staff 
induction process, and held discussions on ways to improve induction and retention within 
the Council. 

3. This evidence, and the suggestions and discussions at these meetings, have been used to 
shape the review, and the information is included in a draft report which is to be 
considered by the Committee, and any comments made. 
 

4. At the previous meeting, it was suggested that the review could touch upon Member 
Development, and allow Councillors access to the staff induction processes. The 
Democratic Services Manager noted that Member induction is considered separate to 
employee induction within the Council. However, Democratic Services will compare and 
contrast the two induction processes as part of the update for the 'Councillor Induction' in 
2018 and include any relevant information in the Member induction if necessary. 

 
5.  A copy of the draft report is attached as Appendix A to the item. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 21



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank



Employee Induction and 

Retention in Hillingdon
 

A Review by the Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy 

Overview Committee

Councillors on the Committee: 

(Vice-Chairman); Wayne Bridges; Jazz

Flynn; Raymond Graham; Henry Higgins; and Robin Sansarpuri

Date here 

 

 

 
 

Employee Induction and 

Retention in Hillingdon

A Review by the Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy 

Overview Committee 

Councillors on the Committee: Scott Seaman-Digby (Chairman); Richard Mills 

Chairman); Wayne Bridges; Jazz Dhillon; Beulah East (Labour Lead); Duncan 

Flynn; Raymond Graham; Henry Higgins; and Robin Sansarpuri 

Appendix A

Employee Induction and 

Retention in Hillingdon 

 

A Review by the Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy 

Digby (Chairman); Richard Mills 

Dhillon; Beulah East (Labour Lead); Duncan 

Appendix A 

Page 23



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

Chairman's Foreword

Last year
Committee carried out an in

Council. As part of this review, we touched upon the importance of the 

retention and induction of staff at the Council, and recognised the good work 

that was being done in this regard.

Staff induction and retention is vital at an

agreed that following the review into recruitment, the natural progression 

would be to launch a follow

        By better understanding both the Council’s own induction process and

way that high

processes with other organisations, the Committee were able to fully examine and 

understand best practice. This evidence allowed for recommendations which will continue t

Council retain high performing staff and ensure that the staff induction process is modern, engaging and 

successful. 

The Committee called upon witnesses from within the Council to discuss staff induction, and this, along 

with the evidence from the Council’s Human Resources Department and private sector organisations on 

current practice for both induction and retention, helped shape the recommendations that are outlined in 

this report.  

These recommendations will allow the Council to help employee

Council quickly and efficiently, encouraging them to remain an employee, and in turn, helping Hillingdon 

Council to remain a successful local authority employer, with a wealth of talented staff members who are 

able to deliver the organisation’s services to residents at the high standard they deserve. 

Councillor Scott Seaman-Digby
Chairman of the Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee

  

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

Chairman's Foreword 
 

 

 

Last year, the Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview 

Committee carried out an in-depth review into recruitment at Hillingdon 

Council. As part of this review, we touched upon the importance of the 

retention and induction of staff at the Council, and recognised the good work 

that was being done in this regard. 

Staff induction and retention is vital at any organisation, and the Committee 

agreed that following the review into recruitment, the natural progression 

would be to launch a follow-up review into these areas at Hillingdon. 

By better understanding both the Council’s own induction process and

way that high-performing staff are retained, and comparing and contrasting those 

processes with other organisations, the Committee were able to fully examine and 

understand best practice. This evidence allowed for recommendations which will continue t

Council retain high performing staff and ensure that the staff induction process is modern, engaging and 

The Committee called upon witnesses from within the Council to discuss staff induction, and this, along 

he Council’s Human Resources Department and private sector organisations on 

current practice for both induction and retention, helped shape the recommendations that are outlined in 

These recommendations will allow the Council to help employees settle into their new roles at the 

Council quickly and efficiently, encouraging them to remain an employee, and in turn, helping Hillingdon 

Council to remain a successful local authority employer, with a wealth of talented staff members who are 

eliver the organisation’s services to residents at the high standard they deserve. 

Digby 
Chairman of the Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee

 Page 2 

, the Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview 

recruitment at Hillingdon 

Council. As part of this review, we touched upon the importance of the 

retention and induction of staff at the Council, and recognised the good work 

y organisation, and the Committee 

agreed that following the review into recruitment, the natural progression 

up review into these areas at Hillingdon.  

By better understanding both the Council’s own induction process and the 

performing staff are retained, and comparing and contrasting those 

processes with other organisations, the Committee were able to fully examine and 

understand best practice. This evidence allowed for recommendations which will continue to help the 

Council retain high performing staff and ensure that the staff induction process is modern, engaging and 

The Committee called upon witnesses from within the Council to discuss staff induction, and this, along 

he Council’s Human Resources Department and private sector organisations on 

current practice for both induction and retention, helped shape the recommendations that are outlined in 

s settle into their new roles at the 

Council quickly and efficiently, encouraging them to remain an employee, and in turn, helping Hillingdon 

Council to remain a successful local authority employer, with a wealth of talented staff members who are 

eliver the organisation’s services to residents at the high standard they deserve.  

Chairman of the Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee 

Page 24



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

Chairman’s Foreword

Summary of Recommendations 

Background to the Review

Evidence & Witness Testimony

Findings & Conclusions

Terms of Reference 

Witness & Committee activity

References 

Appendices 

 

  

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

Contents 

 

Chairman’s Foreword 

Summary of Recommendations to Cabinet 

Background to the Review 

Evidence & Witness Testimony 

Findings & Conclusions 

 

Witness & Committee activity 

 Page 3 

2 

4 

5 

12 

21 

24 

25 

26 

27 

Page 25



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

Summary of Recommendations to Cabinet

Through the witnesses and evidence received during the detailed review by the Committee, Members 

have agreed the following recommendations to Cabinet:

 

1 
Officers continue to review the induction process where necessary, and make 

improvements as required to ensure that the induct

new employees.  

2 
Review the current staff benefits package offered to employees with Employee 

Forum, to ensure it remains competitive and relevant to staff interests.

3 
Human Resources work with the Employee Forum to 

and Wellbeing activities available to staff.

4 
Refresh the Council's mobile and flexible working policy to indicate how we 

support technology enabled working practices, targeted within appropriate 

services.  

5 
Provide clarity around the Council's culture and values, including focus on 

professional development, which are key to candidates' decision

choosing a new employer.

 

 

 

 

  

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

Summary of Recommendations to Cabinet

 

evidence received during the detailed review by the Committee, Members 

have agreed the following recommendations to Cabinet:  

Officers continue to review the induction process where necessary, and make 

improvements as required to ensure that the induction process remains suitable for 

Review the current staff benefits package offered to employees with Employee 

Forum, to ensure it remains competitive and relevant to staff interests.

Human Resources work with the Employee Forum to further develop the Health 

and Wellbeing activities available to staff. 

Refresh the Council's mobile and flexible working policy to indicate how we 

support technology enabled working practices, targeted within appropriate 

around the Council's culture and values, including focus on 

professional development, which are key to candidates' decision

choosing a new employer. 

 Page 4 

Summary of Recommendations to Cabinet 

evidence received during the detailed review by the Committee, Members 

Officers continue to review the induction process where necessary, and make 

ion process remains suitable for 

Review the current staff benefits package offered to employees with Employee 

Forum, to ensure it remains competitive and relevant to staff interests. 

further develop the Health 

Refresh the Council's mobile and flexible working policy to indicate how we 

support technology enabled working practices, targeted within appropriate 

around the Council's culture and values, including focus on 

professional development, which are key to candidates' decision-making when 

Page 26



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

Background to the Review

In March 2017, the Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy

"Recruitment in Hillingdon" was heard and approved by Cabinet. This review was designed to identify 

any potential improvements to the current recruitment practices to allow the Council to continue to attract 

high-calibre staff and progress the Council's attractiveness as an employer.

Following the conclusion of that review, Councillors suggested a further review that focused on staff 

induction and retention, a topic that was touched upon in the previous report. By revisiting 

allowed the Committee to comprehensively consider all aspects of staff recruitment and retention in 

greater detail. 

It was agreed to focus on the Council's staff induction and staff retention policies, two areas that can have 

a direct impact upon employee turnover at the organisation. To best understand the areas that the 

Committee reviewed, it is first necessary to understand how they are defined.

Staff induction is considered the process for bringing new staff members into an organisation, 

an introduction to the new working environment, and training the new employee for their work 

assignment. 

Staff retention is defined here simply as the ability of an employer to retain its employees. The rate of 

retention can be calculated as the proportion of employees with a specific length of service, expressed as 

a percentage of the overall workforce numbers.

Before it was able to look deeper into both staff induction and retention, and better understanding how the 

Council can improve these aspects of the organisation, it was first necessary to understand the Council's 

rates of employee turnover, and how employee turnover has an impact on an organisation.

Employee Turnover 

Staff turnover refers to the proportion of employees who leave an orga

usually monitored on a year-to-year basis, expressed as a percentage of the total workforce number. At its 

broadest, the term encompasses all leavers, both voluntary and involuntary, including resignations, 

retirements and redundancies, however, it is possible to calculate more specific staff turnover data, such 

as resignation levels, which is useful to assess the effectiveness of staff retention in the organisation, and 

understand the reasons behind voluntary departures 

problems that arise in retaining staff within the Council. 

There are a number of positives that can be found in a turnover of staff, and the Council recognise that 

there is a healthy level of turnover that can benefit the organisation. However, it is important to also keep 

a close eye on the challenges that resignations can pose. 

There is no set level at which employee turnover starts to have a negative impact on the performance of 

an organisation, and it is widely accepted that a moderate level of staff turnover can be beneficial for 

organisations, with new staff bringing new ideas and approaches with them to the role. However, it is 

important to retain high-performing staff, and this review sought to 

employees of Hillingdon Council.  

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

Background to the Review 

 

In March 2017, the Corporate Services and Partnerships Policy Overview Committee review into 

"Recruitment in Hillingdon" was heard and approved by Cabinet. This review was designed to identify 

any potential improvements to the current recruitment practices to allow the Council to continue to attract 

ff and progress the Council's attractiveness as an employer. 

Following the conclusion of that review, Councillors suggested a further review that focused on staff 

induction and retention, a topic that was touched upon in the previous report. By revisiting 

allowed the Committee to comprehensively consider all aspects of staff recruitment and retention in 

It was agreed to focus on the Council's staff induction and staff retention policies, two areas that can have 

upon employee turnover at the organisation. To best understand the areas that the 

Committee reviewed, it is first necessary to understand how they are defined. 

Staff induction is considered the process for bringing new staff members into an organisation, 

an introduction to the new working environment, and training the new employee for their work 

Staff retention is defined here simply as the ability of an employer to retain its employees. The rate of 

proportion of employees with a specific length of service, expressed as 

a percentage of the overall workforce numbers. 

Before it was able to look deeper into both staff induction and retention, and better understanding how the 

aspects of the organisation, it was first necessary to understand the Council's 

rates of employee turnover, and how employee turnover has an impact on an organisation.

Staff turnover refers to the proportion of employees who leave an organisation over a set period of time, 

year basis, expressed as a percentage of the total workforce number. At its 

broadest, the term encompasses all leavers, both voluntary and involuntary, including resignations, 

nd redundancies, however, it is possible to calculate more specific staff turnover data, such 

as resignation levels, which is useful to assess the effectiveness of staff retention in the organisation, and 

understand the reasons behind voluntary departures from the Council. This can help address any potential 

problems that arise in retaining staff within the Council.  

There are a number of positives that can be found in a turnover of staff, and the Council recognise that 

that can benefit the organisation. However, it is important to also keep 

a close eye on the challenges that resignations can pose.  

There is no set level at which employee turnover starts to have a negative impact on the performance of 

it is widely accepted that a moderate level of staff turnover can be beneficial for 

organisations, with new staff bringing new ideas and approaches with them to the role. However, it is 

performing staff, and this review sought to find ways to encourage staff to remain 

 Page 5 

Overview Committee review into 

"Recruitment in Hillingdon" was heard and approved by Cabinet. This review was designed to identify 

any potential improvements to the current recruitment practices to allow the Council to continue to attract 

Following the conclusion of that review, Councillors suggested a further review that focused on staff 

induction and retention, a topic that was touched upon in the previous report. By revisiting this issue, it 

allowed the Committee to comprehensively consider all aspects of staff recruitment and retention in 

It was agreed to focus on the Council's staff induction and staff retention policies, two areas that can have 

upon employee turnover at the organisation. To best understand the areas that the 

Staff induction is considered the process for bringing new staff members into an organisation, providing 

an introduction to the new working environment, and training the new employee for their work 

Staff retention is defined here simply as the ability of an employer to retain its employees. The rate of 

proportion of employees with a specific length of service, expressed as 

Before it was able to look deeper into both staff induction and retention, and better understanding how the 

aspects of the organisation, it was first necessary to understand the Council's 

rates of employee turnover, and how employee turnover has an impact on an organisation. 

nisation over a set period of time, 

year basis, expressed as a percentage of the total workforce number. At its 

broadest, the term encompasses all leavers, both voluntary and involuntary, including resignations, 

nd redundancies, however, it is possible to calculate more specific staff turnover data, such 

as resignation levels, which is useful to assess the effectiveness of staff retention in the organisation, and 

from the Council. This can help address any potential 

There are a number of positives that can be found in a turnover of staff, and the Council recognise that 

that can benefit the organisation. However, it is important to also keep 

There is no set level at which employee turnover starts to have a negative impact on the performance of 

it is widely accepted that a moderate level of staff turnover can be beneficial for 

organisations, with new staff bringing new ideas and approaches with them to the role. However, it is 

find ways to encourage staff to remain 

Page 27



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

The retention of staff was looked at in depth by the Committee, but it was also important to understand 

the costs, both monetary and otherwise, that are an effect of staff turnover. T

remains at an acceptable level, the benefits of new employees must outweigh the costs of employees 

leaving the Council, and to ensure that these costs are kept to a minimum, it is crucial that Hillingdon 

Council monitors staff turnover and the reasons that are behind an individual's decision to leave the 

organisation. 

It is possible to plan for retirements, efficiencies and redundancies, but voluntary resignations can cause 

problems for any employer. The added costs that come with ad

coupled with interruptions to the flow of work as a handover ensues, which can lead to decreased 

performance and a disruption to productivity and services. In turn, this can potentially cause poor 

customer service and damage an organisation’s reputation, in addition to the burden that falls on 

colleagues who pick up work as a replacement is found. This can then lead to stress and an unsettled work 

environment, which can result in lower staff morale and dissatisfaction

ultimately result in further resignations.

Nationwide, surveys suggest that the median rate of staff turnover has increased recently, following a 

decline since 2005, but the levels vary based on geography, with highest rates u

where unemployment is low, thus it is easy for people to find a different job.

Hillingdon Council monitors both voluntary and involuntary turnover on a quarterly basis, and turnover 

of staff is beneficial to an organisation as new sta

improves innovation, while a low turnover rate can lead to stagnation.

Staff turnover is monitored for a number of reasons,

be ignored. Costs include administration of the resignation, advertisement and recruitment costs, selection 

costs, covering the post during the period that it is vacant and induction training for the new staff, and 

many of these costs also include staff time. At a time when tough fin

across local government, it is therefore more important than ever that the financial implications of 

turnover are kept to a minimum. 

Measuring the levels and costs of employee turnover can be vital to the organisation when i

putting aside resources for staff recruitment and retention purposes, and prepare for the financial 

challenges that come with it, but in addition to the financial repercussions from staff turnover, the 

importance of organisations monitoring staf

recruit for cannot be underplayed, and this helps to ensure that at no time the department becomes 

understaffed or overstretched.  

As such, it is important for the Council to look at levels of tu

recruiting strategy, and the organisation uses staff surveys and exit questionnaires to help achieve this. 

Ensuring a good induction and welcome to the organisation is also imperative in ensuring new employees 

are willing to stay at the Council, as the highest rate of turnover is among staff who have been at the 

organisation for under a year.  

In the 2016/17 financial year, the Council's total employee turnover was 17.7%, with 503 staff leaving the 

organisation across the year. At the end of the year, the employee headcount was 2,840.

However, employee turnover in that period can broadly be categorised as voluntary, where the employee 

resigns, and non-voluntary, where the contract of employment is terminated for 

redundancy, dismissal, retirement or death in service. The Council's voluntary turnover for 2016/17 was 

10.3% (293 resignations) while the non

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

The retention of staff was looked at in depth by the Committee, but it was also important to understand 

the costs, both monetary and otherwise, that are an effect of staff turnover. T

remains at an acceptable level, the benefits of new employees must outweigh the costs of employees 

leaving the Council, and to ensure that these costs are kept to a minimum, it is crucial that Hillingdon 

ver and the reasons that are behind an individual's decision to leave the 

It is possible to plan for retirements, efficiencies and redundancies, but voluntary resignations can cause 

problems for any employer. The added costs that come with advertising, recruitment and training are 

coupled with interruptions to the flow of work as a handover ensues, which can lead to decreased 

performance and a disruption to productivity and services. In turn, this can potentially cause poor 

d damage an organisation’s reputation, in addition to the burden that falls on 

colleagues who pick up work as a replacement is found. This can then lead to stress and an unsettled work 

environment, which can result in lower staff morale and dissatisfaction, which if not checked, could 

ultimately result in further resignations. 

Nationwide, surveys suggest that the median rate of staff turnover has increased recently, following a 

decline since 2005, but the levels vary based on geography, with highest rates u

where unemployment is low, thus it is easy for people to find a different job. 

Hillingdon Council monitors both voluntary and involuntary turnover on a quarterly basis, and turnover 

of staff is beneficial to an organisation as new staff members can bring with them new ideas, which 

improves innovation, while a low turnover rate can lead to stagnation. 

Staff turnover is monitored for a number of reasons, but the financial implications of staff turnover cannot 

ministration of the resignation, advertisement and recruitment costs, selection 

costs, covering the post during the period that it is vacant and induction training for the new staff, and 

many of these costs also include staff time. At a time when tough financial decisions are being made 

across local government, it is therefore more important than ever that the financial implications of 

Measuring the levels and costs of employee turnover can be vital to the organisation when i

putting aside resources for staff recruitment and retention purposes, and prepare for the financial 

challenges that come with it, but in addition to the financial repercussions from staff turnover, the 

importance of organisations monitoring staff turnover in departments or roles that it more difficult to 

recruit for cannot be underplayed, and this helps to ensure that at no time the department becomes 

As such, it is important for the Council to look at levels of turnover across departments to help with its 

recruiting strategy, and the organisation uses staff surveys and exit questionnaires to help achieve this. 

Ensuring a good induction and welcome to the organisation is also imperative in ensuring new employees 

willing to stay at the Council, as the highest rate of turnover is among staff who have been at the 

In the 2016/17 financial year, the Council's total employee turnover was 17.7%, with 503 staff leaving the 

across the year. At the end of the year, the employee headcount was 2,840.

However, employee turnover in that period can broadly be categorised as voluntary, where the employee 

voluntary, where the contract of employment is terminated for 

redundancy, dismissal, retirement or death in service. The Council's voluntary turnover for 2016/17 was 

10.3% (293 resignations) while the non-voluntary departures accounted for 7.4%. The Council's 

 Page 6 

The retention of staff was looked at in depth by the Committee, but it was also important to understand 

the costs, both monetary and otherwise, that are an effect of staff turnover. To ensure staff turnover 

remains at an acceptable level, the benefits of new employees must outweigh the costs of employees 

leaving the Council, and to ensure that these costs are kept to a minimum, it is crucial that Hillingdon 

ver and the reasons that are behind an individual's decision to leave the 

It is possible to plan for retirements, efficiencies and redundancies, but voluntary resignations can cause 

vertising, recruitment and training are 

coupled with interruptions to the flow of work as a handover ensues, which can lead to decreased 

performance and a disruption to productivity and services. In turn, this can potentially cause poor 

d damage an organisation’s reputation, in addition to the burden that falls on 

colleagues who pick up work as a replacement is found. This can then lead to stress and an unsettled work 

, which if not checked, could 

Nationwide, surveys suggest that the median rate of staff turnover has increased recently, following a 

decline since 2005, but the levels vary based on geography, with highest rates usually found in areas 

Hillingdon Council monitors both voluntary and involuntary turnover on a quarterly basis, and turnover 

ff members can bring with them new ideas, which 

but the financial implications of staff turnover cannot 

ministration of the resignation, advertisement and recruitment costs, selection 

costs, covering the post during the period that it is vacant and induction training for the new staff, and 

ancial decisions are being made 

across local government, it is therefore more important than ever that the financial implications of 

Measuring the levels and costs of employee turnover can be vital to the organisation when it comes to 

putting aside resources for staff recruitment and retention purposes, and prepare for the financial 

challenges that come with it, but in addition to the financial repercussions from staff turnover, the 

f turnover in departments or roles that it more difficult to 

recruit for cannot be underplayed, and this helps to ensure that at no time the department becomes 

rnover across departments to help with its 

recruiting strategy, and the organisation uses staff surveys and exit questionnaires to help achieve this. 

Ensuring a good induction and welcome to the organisation is also imperative in ensuring new employees 

willing to stay at the Council, as the highest rate of turnover is among staff who have been at the 

In the 2016/17 financial year, the Council's total employee turnover was 17.7%, with 503 staff leaving the 

across the year. At the end of the year, the employee headcount was 2,840. 

However, employee turnover in that period can broadly be categorised as voluntary, where the employee 

voluntary, where the contract of employment is terminated for a reason such as 

redundancy, dismissal, retirement or death in service. The Council's voluntary turnover for 2016/17 was 

voluntary departures accounted for 7.4%. The Council's 

Page 28



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

Workforce and Organisational Development 

figures would remain broadly similar over the next four to five years.

Overall, there were 210 non-voluntary leavers, which represented 41.8% of all employees who left 

employment in 2016/17. The following table categorises these departures by leaving reason:

 

Reason for Departure 

Retirement 

Health Retirement 

Death in Service 

Dismissal 

End of Contract 

Redundancy / Efficiency 

TUPE 

Total 

 

It was confirmed that the target for voluntary turnover within the Council is 10%. This year, it stands at 

around 11%, although the period that has historically seen the most turnover has already passed,

figure may yet decrease, although if involuntary turnover is included, this figure rises to roughly 18%.

As indicated above, the highest non-

which is a consequence of the ongoing

and restructures. Such re-organisations are undertaken with the focus on improving service delivery 

models and streamlining ways of working through the Council

(BID) transformation programme. In this instance, efficiency is explained as the dismissal of a staff 

member unable to adapt to changing requirements of the role, rather than due to the removal of the role 

itself. 

It is more likely that an employee w

23.7% of leavers having less than one year's full service. However, this figure does also include seasonal 

workers, such as grounds maintenance staff. Additional work was needed to unde

case, though it has been suggested that it may be due to specific roles or the Council’s culture being 

incorrectly described during the recruitment stage.

The Council has subscribed to an 'exit interview' tool called "Last Opinion",

from January 2018 to provide voluntary leavers with an opportunity to explain why they have chosen to 

resign. This interview tool, once live, would provide additional data that may help to answer questions 

such as why more staff leave a role in the first twelve months of their employment. 

Members were informed by the Workforce and Organisational Development Manager that staff leaving 

the organisation was not always a negative factor, and it often it allowed the Council the oppor

undertake further staffing and efficiency reviews. In addition, if more staff leave their roles voluntarily, 

then less staff would need to be asked to leave on a non

could result in stagnation, a regular influx of new staff, with fresh viewpoints and new ideas, is regarded 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

Workforce and Organisational Development Manager informed the Committee that it was expected these 

figures would remain broadly similar over the next four to five years. 

voluntary leavers, which represented 41.8% of all employees who left 

lowing table categorises these departures by leaving reason:

Number of Employees Percentage of Leavers

4 

7 

6 

17 

33 

137 

6 

210 

It was confirmed that the target for voluntary turnover within the Council is 10%. This year, it stands at 

around 11%, although the period that has historically seen the most turnover has already passed,

figure may yet decrease, although if involuntary turnover is included, this figure rises to roughly 18%.

-voluntary reason for employee turnover is redundancy and efficiency, 

which is a consequence of the ongoing requirements to meet financial challenges through service reviews 

organisations are undertaken with the focus on improving service delivery 

models and streamlining ways of working through the Council-wide Business Improvement Del

(BID) transformation programme. In this instance, efficiency is explained as the dismissal of a staff 

member unable to adapt to changing requirements of the role, rather than due to the removal of the role 

It is more likely that an employee will leave in their first year of service than at any other point, with 

23.7% of leavers having less than one year's full service. However, this figure does also include seasonal 

workers, such as grounds maintenance staff. Additional work was needed to unde

case, though it has been suggested that it may be due to specific roles or the Council’s culture being 

incorrectly described during the recruitment stage. 

The Council has subscribed to an 'exit interview' tool called "Last Opinion", and this will be available 

from January 2018 to provide voluntary leavers with an opportunity to explain why they have chosen to 

resign. This interview tool, once live, would provide additional data that may help to answer questions 

leave a role in the first twelve months of their employment. 

Members were informed by the Workforce and Organisational Development Manager that staff leaving 

the organisation was not always a negative factor, and it often it allowed the Council the oppor

undertake further staffing and efficiency reviews. In addition, if more staff leave their roles voluntarily, 

then less staff would need to be asked to leave on a non-voluntary basis, while an overall aging workforce 

regular influx of new staff, with fresh viewpoints and new ideas, is regarded 

 Page 7 

Manager informed the Committee that it was expected these 

voluntary leavers, which represented 41.8% of all employees who left 

lowing table categorises these departures by leaving reason: 

Percentage of Leavers 

0.8% 

1.4% 

1.2% 

3.4% 

6.6% 

27.2% 

1.2% 

41.8% 

It was confirmed that the target for voluntary turnover within the Council is 10%. This year, it stands at 

around 11%, although the period that has historically seen the most turnover has already passed, so this 

figure may yet decrease, although if involuntary turnover is included, this figure rises to roughly 18%. 

voluntary reason for employee turnover is redundancy and efficiency, 

requirements to meet financial challenges through service reviews 

organisations are undertaken with the focus on improving service delivery 

wide Business Improvement Delivery 

(BID) transformation programme. In this instance, efficiency is explained as the dismissal of a staff 

member unable to adapt to changing requirements of the role, rather than due to the removal of the role 

ill leave in their first year of service than at any other point, with 

23.7% of leavers having less than one year's full service. However, this figure does also include seasonal 

workers, such as grounds maintenance staff. Additional work was needed to understand why this was the 

case, though it has been suggested that it may be due to specific roles or the Council’s culture being 

and this will be available 

from January 2018 to provide voluntary leavers with an opportunity to explain why they have chosen to 

resign. This interview tool, once live, would provide additional data that may help to answer questions 

leave a role in the first twelve months of their employment.  

Members were informed by the Workforce and Organisational Development Manager that staff leaving 

the organisation was not always a negative factor, and it often it allowed the Council the opportunity to 

undertake further staffing and efficiency reviews. In addition, if more staff leave their roles voluntarily, 

voluntary basis, while an overall aging workforce 

regular influx of new staff, with fresh viewpoints and new ideas, is regarded 

Page 29



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

as healthy for any organisation. 

Staff Induction 

Staff induction programs are critical for the effective integration of staff into an organisation, and helps 

provide an introduction to the organisation, with information on everything from the working 

environment and culture, to the role that the new employee will have. A successful staff induction 

programme is the best way to help a new staff member settle into their role

off the positivity and enthusiasm that usually comes with starting a new job.

Induction, training and development plans can help to improve the happiness of new employees, as well 

as ensuring that they are suitably challenged 

While recognising employee turnover is necessary in any organisation, it remains essential that the 

Council avoid unusually high staff turnover rates, and as new starters have a higher rate of resignation 

than long-serving employees, the importance of a strong staff induction process cannot be understated. 

When leaving a role in the first few months of employment, recruitment and selection is often considered 

the issue. However, this is not always the case, and sometimes it can be a res

programme. More often than not, a personal decision to leave an organisation is made within the first few 

weeks of employment, even if the staff member in question does not formally leave at that time. 

The recruitment process has the potential to cause these problems, with expectations raised too high or 

staff accepting roles that, ultimately, they are not suited for. Nonetheless, the Committee’s previous 

review into ‘Recruitment in Hillingdon’

questions associated with each job description, suitable selection techniques and values

techniques to ensure employees are a culture

relevant roles". This recommendation, along with the Council's increased focus on developing an 

employer brand, was seen to provide a solution to concerns that the selection process was resulting in 

unsuitable candidates, and as such, it was then possible by the Committee to change t

induction of new employees.  

A good staff induction process is a powerful tool to ensure employees are physically and mentally able to 

perform in their role, and allow them to learn those skills they still require as soon as possible f

early experiences and training in the role.

It allows the employee to meet their immediate colleagues and other workers they may have contact with 

in the future, as well as succinctly outlining the procedures and practices that are most important

organisation and role. Furthermore, less job

the management structure should be explained early in the employee's new role, along with the more 

simple issues that affect new staff, such as

the canteen. Overall, however, the induction itself may take several days or weeks before it is completed. 

It is important that managers recognise that each individual employee is different

slightly altered induction.  

For example, more experienced and confident employees might require a different induction from 

someone working in local government for the first time, and managers might require an altered induction 

from someone at an entry-level job. By being flexible and tailoring inductions to the employee, the 

organisation will be able to provide a more suitable, and ultimately, successful induction for its 

employees.  

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

Staff induction programs are critical for the effective integration of staff into an organisation, and helps 

introduction to the organisation, with information on everything from the working 

environment and culture, to the role that the new employee will have. A successful staff induction 

programme is the best way to help a new staff member settle into their role in an organisation, building 

off the positivity and enthusiasm that usually comes with starting a new job. 

Induction, training and development plans can help to improve the happiness of new employees, as well 

as ensuring that they are suitably challenged in their new roles. 

While recognising employee turnover is necessary in any organisation, it remains essential that the 

Council avoid unusually high staff turnover rates, and as new starters have a higher rate of resignation 

e importance of a strong staff induction process cannot be understated. 

When leaving a role in the first few months of employment, recruitment and selection is often considered 

the issue. However, this is not always the case, and sometimes it can be a res

programme. More often than not, a personal decision to leave an organisation is made within the first few 

weeks of employment, even if the staff member in question does not formally leave at that time. 

he potential to cause these problems, with expectations raised too high or 

staff accepting roles that, ultimately, they are not suited for. Nonetheless, the Committee’s previous 

Recruitment in Hillingdon’ recommended that "the Council introduc

questions associated with each job description, suitable selection techniques and values

techniques to ensure employees are a culture-fit, and occupational testing for recruitment to key and 

endation, along with the Council's increased focus on developing an 

employer brand, was seen to provide a solution to concerns that the selection process was resulting in 

unsuitable candidates, and as such, it was then possible by the Committee to change t

A good staff induction process is a powerful tool to ensure employees are physically and mentally able to 

perform in their role, and allow them to learn those skills they still require as soon as possible f

early experiences and training in the role. 

It allows the employee to meet their immediate colleagues and other workers they may have contact with 

in the future, as well as succinctly outlining the procedures and practices that are most important

organisation and role. Furthermore, less job-specific issues, such as health and safety requirements and 

the management structure should be explained early in the employee's new role, along with the more 

simple issues that affect new staff, such as the office layout and whereabouts of facilities like toilets and 

the canteen. Overall, however, the induction itself may take several days or weeks before it is completed. 

It is important that managers recognise that each individual employee is different

For example, more experienced and confident employees might require a different induction from 

someone working in local government for the first time, and managers might require an altered induction 

level job. By being flexible and tailoring inductions to the employee, the 

organisation will be able to provide a more suitable, and ultimately, successful induction for its 

 Page 8 

Staff induction programs are critical for the effective integration of staff into an organisation, and helps 

introduction to the organisation, with information on everything from the working 

environment and culture, to the role that the new employee will have. A successful staff induction 

in an organisation, building 

Induction, training and development plans can help to improve the happiness of new employees, as well 

While recognising employee turnover is necessary in any organisation, it remains essential that the 

Council avoid unusually high staff turnover rates, and as new starters have a higher rate of resignation 

e importance of a strong staff induction process cannot be understated.  

When leaving a role in the first few months of employment, recruitment and selection is often considered 

the issue. However, this is not always the case, and sometimes it can be a result of a poor induction 

programme. More often than not, a personal decision to leave an organisation is made within the first few 

weeks of employment, even if the staff member in question does not formally leave at that time.  

he potential to cause these problems, with expectations raised too high or 

staff accepting roles that, ultimately, they are not suited for. Nonetheless, the Committee’s previous 

recommended that "the Council introduce constant interview 

questions associated with each job description, suitable selection techniques and values-based interview 

fit, and occupational testing for recruitment to key and 

endation, along with the Council's increased focus on developing an 

employer brand, was seen to provide a solution to concerns that the selection process was resulting in 

unsuitable candidates, and as such, it was then possible by the Committee to change the focus towards the 

A good staff induction process is a powerful tool to ensure employees are physically and mentally able to 

perform in their role, and allow them to learn those skills they still require as soon as possible from their 

It allows the employee to meet their immediate colleagues and other workers they may have contact with 

in the future, as well as succinctly outlining the procedures and practices that are most important to the 

specific issues, such as health and safety requirements and 

the management structure should be explained early in the employee's new role, along with the more 

the office layout and whereabouts of facilities like toilets and 

the canteen. Overall, however, the induction itself may take several days or weeks before it is completed.  

It is important that managers recognise that each individual employee is different, and may require a 

For example, more experienced and confident employees might require a different induction from 

someone working in local government for the first time, and managers might require an altered induction 

level job. By being flexible and tailoring inductions to the employee, the 

organisation will be able to provide a more suitable, and ultimately, successful induction for its 

Page 30



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

The Induction Process 

The Council uses an online e-learning system for the induction process, which can be accessed by 

employees through the 'Learning Zone' section of Horizon, the Council's Intranet. Three levels of 

induction packages are available for new permanent staff, agency workers and manager level.

An induction checklist helps to monitor the delivery of essential information and the completion of 

required activities, while also stating which information and activities should be covered on the first day 

of employment, within the first week of employme

primarily to help ensure that all the induction actions are taken consistently across the organisation, and 

includes a range of actions that recruiting managers should complete prior to the new employee

of service; for example, ensuring ICT equipment and network access is available.

Induction includes a variety of orientation activities, such as a tour of the premises, together with 

familiarisation of key policies. Requirements such as health

workspace assessment, are also covered in this orientation, while data protection procedures are also 

included in the induction e-learning packages. Furthermore, managers cover risk management, 

governance (Member/Officer protocol) and disability & equalities modules.

Employees also have the opportunity to meet the Chief Executive, and higher

formal introduction to the Hillingdon Improvement Programme (HIP). Some new staff have also taken up 

the opportunity of ‘Lunch with the Leader’ sessions to better understand the role Members play in 

governing the Council. 

Due to the specific challenge of recruiting and retaining permanent children and families' social workers, 

which has improved significantly over the last couple of years, an enhanced induction has been 

introduced in the Children and Young People Services. A one

ensure that all new social workers meet the Corporate Director of Social Care and the D

Children's Services. 

Induction events are confirmed to be on a timed schedule, so some new starters would need to wait longer 

than others for certain activities, such as meeting the Chief Executive. Meetings held as part of the 

induction process are also initially held within teams or departments, before widening to include 

colleagues in other service areas. 

E-Learning / Online Induction

In addition to the hard copy of the checklist and the induction actions that it details, there are also

number of E-Learning modules which the employee must complete.

The Council's E-Learning system has recently been updated, and Members were given an introduction to 

the system at a recent Committee meeting. The new system includes Hillingdon

facts regarding the Council and its vision, as well as the residents it services.

Links to Google Training and online Google sessions were included in the new system, as well as a 

number of E-Learning modules and short tests to ensure that emp

understanding for relevant subjects. Furthermore, the system allows staff members to book a place at 

sessions in an efficient online way to meet both the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive via the 

intranet. 

As the majority of voluntary departures from an organisation take place during the first year of 

employment, the increased importance of an induction process cannot be ignored. It is therefore vital that 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

arning system for the induction process, which can be accessed by 

employees through the 'Learning Zone' section of Horizon, the Council's Intranet. Three levels of 

induction packages are available for new permanent staff, agency workers and manager level.

An induction checklist helps to monitor the delivery of essential information and the completion of 

required activities, while also stating which information and activities should be covered on the first day 

of employment, within the first week of employment, and within the first month. The checklist is used 

primarily to help ensure that all the induction actions are taken consistently across the organisation, and 

includes a range of actions that recruiting managers should complete prior to the new employee

of service; for example, ensuring ICT equipment and network access is available.

Induction includes a variety of orientation activities, such as a tour of the premises, together with 

familiarisation of key policies. Requirements such as health and safety arrangements, including a 

workspace assessment, are also covered in this orientation, while data protection procedures are also 

learning packages. Furthermore, managers cover risk management, 

er protocol) and disability & equalities modules. 

Employees also have the opportunity to meet the Chief Executive, and higher-graded officers are given a 

formal introduction to the Hillingdon Improvement Programme (HIP). Some new staff have also taken up 

he opportunity of ‘Lunch with the Leader’ sessions to better understand the role Members play in 

Due to the specific challenge of recruiting and retaining permanent children and families' social workers, 

tly over the last couple of years, an enhanced induction has been 

introduced in the Children and Young People Services. A one-day, face-to-face induction is included to 

ensure that all new social workers meet the Corporate Director of Social Care and the D

Induction events are confirmed to be on a timed schedule, so some new starters would need to wait longer 

than others for certain activities, such as meeting the Chief Executive. Meetings held as part of the 

process are also initially held within teams or departments, before widening to include 

Learning / Online Induction 

In addition to the hard copy of the checklist and the induction actions that it details, there are also

Learning modules which the employee must complete. 

Learning system has recently been updated, and Members were given an introduction to 

the system at a recent Committee meeting. The new system includes Hillingdon

facts regarding the Council and its vision, as well as the residents it services. 

Links to Google Training and online Google sessions were included in the new system, as well as a 

Learning modules and short tests to ensure that employees had suitable levels of 

understanding for relevant subjects. Furthermore, the system allows staff members to book a place at 

sessions in an efficient online way to meet both the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive via the 

As the majority of voluntary departures from an organisation take place during the first year of 

employment, the increased importance of an induction process cannot be ignored. It is therefore vital that 

 Page 9 

arning system for the induction process, which can be accessed by 

employees through the 'Learning Zone' section of Horizon, the Council's Intranet. Three levels of 

induction packages are available for new permanent staff, agency workers and manager level. 

An induction checklist helps to monitor the delivery of essential information and the completion of 

required activities, while also stating which information and activities should be covered on the first day 

nt, and within the first month. The checklist is used 

primarily to help ensure that all the induction actions are taken consistently across the organisation, and 

includes a range of actions that recruiting managers should complete prior to the new employee's first day 

of service; for example, ensuring ICT equipment and network access is available. 

Induction includes a variety of orientation activities, such as a tour of the premises, together with 

and safety arrangements, including a 

workspace assessment, are also covered in this orientation, while data protection procedures are also 

learning packages. Furthermore, managers cover risk management, 

graded officers are given a 

formal introduction to the Hillingdon Improvement Programme (HIP). Some new staff have also taken up 

he opportunity of ‘Lunch with the Leader’ sessions to better understand the role Members play in 

Due to the specific challenge of recruiting and retaining permanent children and families' social workers, 

tly over the last couple of years, an enhanced induction has been 

face induction is included to 

ensure that all new social workers meet the Corporate Director of Social Care and the Deputy Director of 

Induction events are confirmed to be on a timed schedule, so some new starters would need to wait longer 

than others for certain activities, such as meeting the Chief Executive. Meetings held as part of the 

process are also initially held within teams or departments, before widening to include 

In addition to the hard copy of the checklist and the induction actions that it details, there are also a 

Learning system has recently been updated, and Members were given an introduction to 

the system at a recent Committee meeting. The new system includes Hillingdon-specific information and 

Links to Google Training and online Google sessions were included in the new system, as well as a 

loyees had suitable levels of 

understanding for relevant subjects. Furthermore, the system allows staff members to book a place at 

sessions in an efficient online way to meet both the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive via the 

As the majority of voluntary departures from an organisation take place during the first year of 

employment, the increased importance of an induction process cannot be ignored. It is therefore vital that 

Page 31



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

the induction processes and E-Learning induction sys

increase the retention rate of employees. 

Staff Retention 

Employees can resign for a number of reasons, such as the attraction of a new job or challenge, or 

alternatively, as a result of being dissatisf

benefits (including pay, pension and leave) can also have a bearing on decisions to resign or remain at a 

job, and it is important to take all of these aspects into account when considering s

The most common reasons that staff resign or leave an employer are widely agreed to be poor salary and 

benefits, a lack of training and/or development opportunities, dissatisfaction with managements, not 

getting along with colleagues, the jo

While a successful staff induction process can increase the Council's ability to retain new employees, it is 

vital to also focus on the retention of long

period of learning and adjusting to a new work environment, so experienced employees are vital to the 

success of any department. 

A flexible approach to staff retention is a necessity. Similarly to staff induction, one method may work for 

some employees, but not others. Therefore, it was important that the Committee considered all the 

different facets of both of these areas before it was possible to reach any conclusions and propose any 

recommendations. 

  

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

Learning induction system at Hillingdon Council are to a high standard, to 

increase the retention rate of employees.  

Employees can resign for a number of reasons, such as the attraction of a new job or challenge, or 

alternatively, as a result of being dissatisfied in their current role. A lack of career progression or staff 

benefits (including pay, pension and leave) can also have a bearing on decisions to resign or remain at a 

job, and it is important to take all of these aspects into account when considering s

The most common reasons that staff resign or leave an employer are widely agreed to be poor salary and 

benefits, a lack of training and/or development opportunities, dissatisfaction with managements, not 

getting along with colleagues, the journey to work, and a lack of work/life balance.

While a successful staff induction process can increase the Council's ability to retain new employees, it is 

vital to also focus on the retention of long-serving staff too, as work efficiency is only reached 

period of learning and adjusting to a new work environment, so experienced employees are vital to the 

A flexible approach to staff retention is a necessity. Similarly to staff induction, one method may work for 

employees, but not others. Therefore, it was important that the Committee considered all the 

different facets of both of these areas before it was possible to reach any conclusions and propose any 

 Page 10 

tem at Hillingdon Council are to a high standard, to 

Employees can resign for a number of reasons, such as the attraction of a new job or challenge, or 

ied in their current role. A lack of career progression or staff 

benefits (including pay, pension and leave) can also have a bearing on decisions to resign or remain at a 

job, and it is important to take all of these aspects into account when considering staff turnover. 

The most common reasons that staff resign or leave an employer are widely agreed to be poor salary and 

benefits, a lack of training and/or development opportunities, dissatisfaction with managements, not 

urney to work, and a lack of work/life balance. 

While a successful staff induction process can increase the Council's ability to retain new employees, it is 

serving staff too, as work efficiency is only reached after a 

period of learning and adjusting to a new work environment, so experienced employees are vital to the 

A flexible approach to staff retention is a necessity. Similarly to staff induction, one method may work for 

employees, but not others. Therefore, it was important that the Committee considered all the 

different facets of both of these areas before it was possible to reach any conclusions and propose any 

Page 32



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

Evidence & Witness Testimony

Scoping of the review 

In scoping and agreeing the review’s Terms of Reference, which is set out in the appendices, the 

Committee sought to gain a in-depth understanding of the Council's employee induction process and how 

the Council seeks to retain its high calibr

During its call-for-evidence sessions, the Committee considered it important to take into account a 

selection of views from both the public and private sector to compare processes and best practice. The 

Committee also called on a specific witness

testimonies. 

Members understood that both staff induction and staff retention were intrinsically linked, but for the 

purpose of the review, felt that the two aspects would best be considered s

Although naturally, it was understood there would be some overlap. 

The Committee viewed these topics as a natural progression from the previous review into recruitment, 

with a strong expectation that any findings from the revie

to deliver a high standard of services for residents, but also help the organisation remain a successful 

public sector employer with a bright future.

Staff Induction 

The Council's Workforce and Organisational

organisation's staff induction procedures, including an in

learning induction system. 

Members were in agreement that the new e

engaging that the previous system, and it was confirmed that the site can still be edited internally, to allow 

for any further improvements which may arise. These improvements have taken place where required 

over the previous two years, and Human Resources will continue to monitor the system and make 

changes where necessary. 

In addition to the Workforce and Organisational Development Manager's evidence on staff induction, the 

Committee called on the evidence of a new starter, who had been

six months, to better understand the Council's induction processes from the perspective of a staff member 

who had recently undertaken this training.

The Council’s Trainee Internal Auditor was willing to attend a Comm

as a witness, and discuss his experience of the induction process. Having been employed at London 

Borough of Hillingdon for four months, the Trainee Internal Auditor had completed several stages of his 

induction, including familiarising himself with the organisation and layout of the building and meeting 

colleagues within his team on the first day, and completing a number of relevant e

the intranet over the first week in the role. Details on the Code of C

with other basic information on the organisation, were received from the Line Manager on the first day of 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

Evidence & Witness Testimony 

 

In scoping and agreeing the review’s Terms of Reference, which is set out in the appendices, the 

depth understanding of the Council's employee induction process and how 

the Council seeks to retain its high calibre staff.  

evidence sessions, the Committee considered it important to take into account a 

selection of views from both the public and private sector to compare processes and best practice. The 

Committee also called on a specific witnesses to help with the review, and this section will outline those 

Members understood that both staff induction and staff retention were intrinsically linked, but for the 

purpose of the review, felt that the two aspects would best be considered separately to provide focus. 

Although naturally, it was understood there would be some overlap.  

The Committee viewed these topics as a natural progression from the previous review into recruitment, 

with a strong expectation that any findings from the review would not only assist the Council to continue 

to deliver a high standard of services for residents, but also help the organisation remain a successful 

public sector employer with a bright future. 

The Council's Workforce and Organisational Development Manager introduced the Committee to the 

organisation's staff induction procedures, including an in-depth presentation on the Council's new e

Members were in agreement that the new e-learning system was visually much 

engaging that the previous system, and it was confirmed that the site can still be edited internally, to allow 

for any further improvements which may arise. These improvements have taken place where required 

and Human Resources will continue to monitor the system and make 

In addition to the Workforce and Organisational Development Manager's evidence on staff induction, the 

Committee called on the evidence of a new starter, who had been employed at the Council for fewer than 

six months, to better understand the Council's induction processes from the perspective of a staff member 

who had recently undertaken this training. 

The Council’s Trainee Internal Auditor was willing to attend a Committee meeting to address Members 

as a witness, and discuss his experience of the induction process. Having been employed at London 

Borough of Hillingdon for four months, the Trainee Internal Auditor had completed several stages of his 

familiarising himself with the organisation and layout of the building and meeting 

colleagues within his team on the first day, and completing a number of relevant e

the intranet over the first week in the role. Details on the Code of Conduct and benefits of the role, along 

with other basic information on the organisation, were received from the Line Manager on the first day of 

 Page 11 

 

In scoping and agreeing the review’s Terms of Reference, which is set out in the appendices, the 

depth understanding of the Council's employee induction process and how 

evidence sessions, the Committee considered it important to take into account a 

selection of views from both the public and private sector to compare processes and best practice. The 

es to help with the review, and this section will outline those 

Members understood that both staff induction and staff retention were intrinsically linked, but for the 

eparately to provide focus. 

The Committee viewed these topics as a natural progression from the previous review into recruitment, 

w would not only assist the Council to continue 

to deliver a high standard of services for residents, but also help the organisation remain a successful 

Development Manager introduced the Committee to the 

depth presentation on the Council's new e-

learning system was visually much more appealing and 

engaging that the previous system, and it was confirmed that the site can still be edited internally, to allow 

for any further improvements which may arise. These improvements have taken place where required 

and Human Resources will continue to monitor the system and make 

In addition to the Workforce and Organisational Development Manager's evidence on staff induction, the 

employed at the Council for fewer than 

six months, to better understand the Council's induction processes from the perspective of a staff member 

ittee meeting to address Members 

as a witness, and discuss his experience of the induction process. Having been employed at London 

Borough of Hillingdon for four months, the Trainee Internal Auditor had completed several stages of his 

familiarising himself with the organisation and layout of the building and meeting 

colleagues within his team on the first day, and completing a number of relevant e-learning modules on 

onduct and benefits of the role, along 

with other basic information on the organisation, were received from the Line Manager on the first day of 

Page 33



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

employment; these included modules on the role of local authorities, the Council’s responsibilities, health 

and safety and the Data Protection Act. Members considered, in this specific case, the information that 

was received by the Trainee regarding the role of a local authority was very comprehensive.

Having met with colleagues, the Trainee Internal Auditor engage

involving a mock internal audit and shadowing of colleagues to learn more about the role. The Committee 

was informed that there were weekly one

Development Appraisal (PADA) system; there was also an in

probation period of six months. On a more personal side to the induction, the Audit Department was 

praised for introducing new starters to the team over coffee, which Councillo

informal gesture that would help integrate new employees within the team.

Members noted that it was not always easy to network with colleagues who worked outside of an 

employee's respective department, but agreed that this was an

outside the department was likely to improve with longevity at the organisation, as contacts were made in 

other departments through contact through work, intermediaries or social events.

The Trainee Internal Auditor also confirmed that an understanding of the politics of the Council comes 

largely from discussions with team members, colleagues and line managers, although there was enough 

information in the e-learning system for new starters. 

Members were given login details for the E

themselves and better understand what exercises new employees completed during their induction period. 

The Committee noted that a review of the employee's induction period takes place after

employment, when the probation period ends. There were suggestions that moving this review to three 

months may allow new employees to make adjustments or improvements that could help them in their 

role earlier in their employment, but it was

and colleagues would allow for these adjustments to be made, without needing the formality of another 

meeting. 

The system also generates feedback forms and retains the results, allowing the 

easily-accessed record of comments on the induction process, which can be used to make improvements 

to the processes where necessary. 

Staff Retention 

A report presented to the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills in 2009 found that 87% of 

employees were less likely to leave their employer if they felt engaged in their role.

Factors that can influence engagement include clear leadership, feeling able to contribute t

employment, decision-making opportunities, and allowing employees a forum to voice views and 

concerns.  

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

employment; these included modules on the role of local authorities, the Council’s responsibilities, health 

safety and the Data Protection Act. Members considered, in this specific case, the information that 

was received by the Trainee regarding the role of a local authority was very comprehensive.

Having met with colleagues, the Trainee Internal Auditor engaged in further job

involving a mock internal audit and shadowing of colleagues to learn more about the role. The Committee 

was informed that there were weekly one-to-one meetings with managers, alongside the Performance and 

raisal (PADA) system; there was also an in-depth review scheduled following the 

probation period of six months. On a more personal side to the induction, the Audit Department was 

praised for introducing new starters to the team over coffee, which Councillors agreed was a welcoming, 

informal gesture that would help integrate new employees within the team. 

Members noted that it was not always easy to network with colleagues who worked outside of an 

employee's respective department, but agreed that this was an organic process, and that networking 

outside the department was likely to improve with longevity at the organisation, as contacts were made in 

other departments through contact through work, intermediaries or social events. 

so confirmed that an understanding of the politics of the Council comes 

largely from discussions with team members, colleagues and line managers, although there was enough 

learning system for new starters.  

ails for the E-Learning modules so that they could use the system 

themselves and better understand what exercises new employees completed during their induction period. 

The Committee noted that a review of the employee's induction period takes place after

employment, when the probation period ends. There were suggestions that moving this review to three 

months may allow new employees to make adjustments or improvements that could help them in their 

role earlier in their employment, but it was agreed that regular updates and meetings with line managers 

and colleagues would allow for these adjustments to be made, without needing the formality of another 

The system also generates feedback forms and retains the results, allowing the 

accessed record of comments on the induction process, which can be used to make improvements 

the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills in 2009 found that 87% of 

employees were less likely to leave their employer if they felt engaged in their role.

Factors that can influence engagement include clear leadership, feeling able to contribute t

making opportunities, and allowing employees a forum to voice views and 

 Page 12 

employment; these included modules on the role of local authorities, the Council’s responsibilities, health 

safety and the Data Protection Act. Members considered, in this specific case, the information that 

was received by the Trainee regarding the role of a local authority was very comprehensive. 

d in further job-specific training, 

involving a mock internal audit and shadowing of colleagues to learn more about the role. The Committee 

one meetings with managers, alongside the Performance and 

depth review scheduled following the 

probation period of six months. On a more personal side to the induction, the Audit Department was 

rs agreed was a welcoming, 

Members noted that it was not always easy to network with colleagues who worked outside of an 

organic process, and that networking 

outside the department was likely to improve with longevity at the organisation, as contacts were made in 

 

so confirmed that an understanding of the politics of the Council comes 

largely from discussions with team members, colleagues and line managers, although there was enough 

Learning modules so that they could use the system 

themselves and better understand what exercises new employees completed during their induction period.  

The Committee noted that a review of the employee's induction period takes place after six months of 

employment, when the probation period ends. There were suggestions that moving this review to three 

months may allow new employees to make adjustments or improvements that could help them in their 

agreed that regular updates and meetings with line managers 

and colleagues would allow for these adjustments to be made, without needing the formality of another 

The system also generates feedback forms and retains the results, allowing the organisation to have an 

accessed record of comments on the induction process, which can be used to make improvements 

the Department for Business, Innovation and Skills in 2009 found that 87% of 

employees were less likely to leave their employer if they felt engaged in their role. 

Factors that can influence engagement include clear leadership, feeling able to contribute to their 

making opportunities, and allowing employees a forum to voice views and 

Page 34



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

It is commonly accepted by organisations that longer serving employees are more likely to remain with an 

employer, as they become used to the wo

with their colleagues. However, it should be noted that staff turnover tends to be higher in large 

organisations, urban areas, and around Christmas and summer holidays, as people look for “

With turnover much higher among young people, it is also worth considering that the overall turnover rate 

might reduce in the future with the aging UK population. Retention difficulties are on the rise though, and 

the graph below (published in CIPD's survey report on "

illustrates the increase or decrease in staff retention over a number of categories over the last few years.

This highlights that professionals or specialists have the highest turnover rates

challenge of its own. Where specialist skills are required, particularly when the market is scarce, turnover 

can become problematic. In these instances, a resignation can be damaging and staff difficult to replace, 

which in turn affects performance of an organisation. However, in contrast, where it is relatively easy to 

find and train new employees quickly, it is possible to sustain high performance in these service areas 

despite a high turnover. 

Reasons for resignation include, but are n

development opportunities, dissatisfaction with management, not getting along with colleagues, or a lack 

of work/life balance, equal opportunities (the Council remains an “equal opportunitie

communication and consultation on developments within the organisation, management skills, the 

handling of grievances at work, working conditions, working hours (flexible working), performance 

management, personal development plans, stress, a

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

It is commonly accepted by organisations that longer serving employees are more likely to remain with an 

employer, as they become used to the work culture of an organisation and establish stronger relationships 

with their colleagues. However, it should be noted that staff turnover tends to be higher in large 

organisations, urban areas, and around Christmas and summer holidays, as people look for “

With turnover much higher among young people, it is also worth considering that the overall turnover rate 

might reduce in the future with the aging UK population. Retention difficulties are on the rise though, and 

n CIPD's survey report on "Resourcing and Talent Planning 2017

illustrates the increase or decrease in staff retention over a number of categories over the last few years.

This highlights that professionals or specialists have the highest turnover rates

challenge of its own. Where specialist skills are required, particularly when the market is scarce, turnover 

can become problematic. In these instances, a resignation can be damaging and staff difficult to replace, 

performance of an organisation. However, in contrast, where it is relatively easy to 

find and train new employees quickly, it is possible to sustain high performance in these service areas 

Reasons for resignation include, but are not limited to, poor salary or benefits, a lack of training and/or 

development opportunities, dissatisfaction with management, not getting along with colleagues, or a lack 

of work/life balance, equal opportunities (the Council remains an “equal opportunitie

communication and consultation on developments within the organisation, management skills, the 

handling of grievances at work, working conditions, working hours (flexible working), performance 

management, personal development plans, stress, and the chance to submit ideas for improvements. 

 Page 13 

It is commonly accepted by organisations that longer serving employees are more likely to remain with an 

rk culture of an organisation and establish stronger relationships 

with their colleagues. However, it should be noted that staff turnover tends to be higher in large 

organisations, urban areas, and around Christmas and summer holidays, as people look for “a new start”. 

With turnover much higher among young people, it is also worth considering that the overall turnover rate 

might reduce in the future with the aging UK population. Retention difficulties are on the rise though, and 

Resourcing and Talent Planning 2017") 

illustrates the increase or decrease in staff retention over a number of categories over the last few years. 

This highlights that professionals or specialists have the highest turnover rates, which provides a 

challenge of its own. Where specialist skills are required, particularly when the market is scarce, turnover 

can become problematic. In these instances, a resignation can be damaging and staff difficult to replace, 

performance of an organisation. However, in contrast, where it is relatively easy to 

find and train new employees quickly, it is possible to sustain high performance in these service areas 

ot limited to, poor salary or benefits, a lack of training and/or 

development opportunities, dissatisfaction with management, not getting along with colleagues, or a lack 

of work/life balance, equal opportunities (the Council remains an “equal opportunities employer"), 

communication and consultation on developments within the organisation, management skills, the 

handling of grievances at work, working conditions, working hours (flexible working), performance 

nd the chance to submit ideas for improvements.  

Page 35



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

However, on occasions there are factors outside of the Council's control that may also lead to an 

employee voluntarily leaving, and these can range from the offer of a new role at a different organisation, 

to personal circumstances or a difficult commute to work. These factors are more difficult to overcome, 

and as such, it must be accepted that some employees may leave an organisation and cannot be persuaded 

to stay. 

According to the CIPD's 2017 survey

specialists, senior managers, and administrative staff than other sectors, as set out in the graph overleaf, 

which illustrates ‘retention difficulties, by occupational category and sector by percentage of survey 

respondents’. 

One such sector where specialists or professionals are currently in demand is Children and Young 

People's Services. Due to the market scarcity of 

currently monitors staff turnover in this area to ensure that the organisation does not suffer high turnover 

that results in being understaffed. 

HR concluded that the Council’s projected turnover compared 

positive retention rate was attributed to a number of factors, one of which was the new induction 

programme. However, the service also had a stable management team, was London’s leading payer of 

social work salaries, and had introduced a new career progression scheme, including rolling out a bespoke 

management development programme. These factors all play an important role in staff retention, and 

other services can learn from the success of the Children and Young Peo

in a very competitive recruiting environment.

Members heard that staff turnover in specific areas of the Council was monitored and reported on a 

monthly basis. This allowed the organisation to implement retention schemes 

ensure the Council did not see higher rates of staff turnover than desirable. One such scheme took place in 

Children's Social Care, an area which nationally saw a higher turnover rate than the average. This scheme 

involved financial remuneration for those employees who confirmed that they would remain at the 

Council for a specific period. This "tie

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

However, on occasions there are factors outside of the Council's control that may also lead to an 

employee voluntarily leaving, and these can range from the offer of a new role at a different organisation, 

o personal circumstances or a difficult commute to work. These factors are more difficult to overcome, 

and as such, it must be accepted that some employees may leave an organisation and cannot be persuaded 

2017 survey, the public sector is more likely to have difficulty retaining 

specialists, senior managers, and administrative staff than other sectors, as set out in the graph overleaf, 

‘retention difficulties, by occupational category and sector by percentage of survey 

One such sector where specialists or professionals are currently in demand is Children and Young 

People's Services. Due to the market scarcity of experienced children's social workers, the Council 

currently monitors staff turnover in this area to ensure that the organisation does not suffer high turnover 

HR concluded that the Council’s projected turnover compared favourably with national statistics. The 

positive retention rate was attributed to a number of factors, one of which was the new induction 

programme. However, the service also had a stable management team, was London’s leading payer of 

, and had introduced a new career progression scheme, including rolling out a bespoke 

management development programme. These factors all play an important role in staff retention, and 

other services can learn from the success of the Children and Young People’s Service when retaining staff 

in a very competitive recruiting environment. 

Members heard that staff turnover in specific areas of the Council was monitored and reported on a 

monthly basis. This allowed the organisation to implement retention schemes 

ensure the Council did not see higher rates of staff turnover than desirable. One such scheme took place in 

Children's Social Care, an area which nationally saw a higher turnover rate than the average. This scheme 

remuneration for those employees who confirmed that they would remain at the 

Council for a specific period. This "tie-in" period was one year, as it was agreed that this time frame 

 Page 14 

However, on occasions there are factors outside of the Council's control that may also lead to an 

employee voluntarily leaving, and these can range from the offer of a new role at a different organisation, 

o personal circumstances or a difficult commute to work. These factors are more difficult to overcome, 

and as such, it must be accepted that some employees may leave an organisation and cannot be persuaded 

, the public sector is more likely to have difficulty retaining 

specialists, senior managers, and administrative staff than other sectors, as set out in the graph overleaf, 

‘retention difficulties, by occupational category and sector by percentage of survey 

One such sector where specialists or professionals are currently in demand is Children and Young 

experienced children's social workers, the Council 

currently monitors staff turnover in this area to ensure that the organisation does not suffer high turnover 

favourably with national statistics. The 

positive retention rate was attributed to a number of factors, one of which was the new induction 

programme. However, the service also had a stable management team, was London’s leading payer of 

, and had introduced a new career progression scheme, including rolling out a bespoke 

management development programme. These factors all play an important role in staff retention, and 

ple’s Service when retaining staff 

Members heard that staff turnover in specific areas of the Council was monitored and reported on a 

monthly basis. This allowed the organisation to implement retention schemes in areas of concern to 

ensure the Council did not see higher rates of staff turnover than desirable. One such scheme took place in 

Children's Social Care, an area which nationally saw a higher turnover rate than the average. This scheme 

remuneration for those employees who confirmed that they would remain at the 

in" period was one year, as it was agreed that this time frame 

Page 36



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

worked better than two years, which was previously used. 

These retention payments were also used for critical employees who were halfway through delivering a 

project. In these cases, a retention payment could be placed on an employee based on a percentage of 

their salary and post, and this payment would be repaid in full if the 

delivering the final project. 

A two-year "tie-in" period was also enforced when staff members undergo Professional Education 

Training that was funded by the organisation. This period ensured that the Council was reward

investment, while also maintaining Hillingdon's commitment to professional development and access to 

training.  

Statistically, increasing learning and development opportunities was the most popular step taken by 

organisations who undertook specific initiatives to improve staff retention (as displayed in the chart by 

the percentage of respondents whose organisations undertook specific initiatives; below).

Around 40% of organisations surveyed by CIPD in 2016 attempted to improve staff retention us

specific schemes, and the offer of increased training and professional development opportunities became 

more common, as improved pay was previously the most popular strategy.

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

worked better than two years, which was previously used.  

ayments were also used for critical employees who were halfway through delivering a 

project. In these cases, a retention payment could be placed on an employee based on a percentage of 

their salary and post, and this payment would be repaid in full if the employee left the organisation before 

in" period was also enforced when staff members undergo Professional Education 

Training that was funded by the organisation. This period ensured that the Council was reward

investment, while also maintaining Hillingdon's commitment to professional development and access to 

Statistically, increasing learning and development opportunities was the most popular step taken by 

fic initiatives to improve staff retention (as displayed in the chart by 

the percentage of respondents whose organisations undertook specific initiatives; below).

Around 40% of organisations surveyed by CIPD in 2016 attempted to improve staff retention us

specific schemes, and the offer of increased training and professional development opportunities became 

more common, as improved pay was previously the most popular strategy. 

 Page 15 

ayments were also used for critical employees who were halfway through delivering a 

project. In these cases, a retention payment could be placed on an employee based on a percentage of 

employee left the organisation before 

in" period was also enforced when staff members undergo Professional Education 

Training that was funded by the organisation. This period ensured that the Council was rewarded for its 

investment, while also maintaining Hillingdon's commitment to professional development and access to 

Statistically, increasing learning and development opportunities was the most popular step taken by 

fic initiatives to improve staff retention (as displayed in the chart by 

the percentage of respondents whose organisations undertook specific initiatives; below). 

Around 40% of organisations surveyed by CIPD in 2016 attempted to improve staff retention using 

specific schemes, and the offer of increased training and professional development opportunities became 

Page 37



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

Retention strategies were used more frequently in the private sector than the public sector, but were 

considered by employees to have an effect on retention, with around one

supporting certain measures that were used. The effectiven

and the table below outlines this, (by the percentage of respondent who believed retention methods were 

most of least effective).  

It is worth noting that although an improved induction process received mixed 

of employees considered it more effective than ineffective.

The evidence also supports an argument that improved pay can be responsible for the retention of staff. 

However, the Workforce and Organisational Development Manager c

received by staff at London Borough of Hillingdon was very competitive. The pension contribution was 

unmatched, staff received better annual leave that the average, that increased after five and ten years of 

services, while employees also received four days of free parking, which was very rare in London 

authorities.  

The Committee’s previous review into

new employees a "Total Reward", that not only involved remune

recruitment package", and this is an area where the Council currently excels, offering competitive 

salaries, a good pension, and flexible working hours to ensure staff are able to enjoy a good work / life 

balance.  

The Committee were informed that, with regards to remuneration, the benchmark salaries in key policy 

areas where monitored to ensure that neighbouring authorities did not increase pay and challenge the 

organisation for key employees. As such, the Council r

which eliminated money as a potential hurdle when employing, or retaining, staff in these key roles.

64% of current Council employees are on permanent contracts, but there were trends to suggest that 

agency staff are actively looking to remain as agency workers, and not look for permanent employment. 

The Committee heard that, nationwide, workers are choosing higher pay rates over better job security, 

and despite not being eligible for pension contributions,

leave and other benefits, while also having pay parity with permanent employees. However, the 

Workforce and Organisational Development Manager confirmed that long

overall benefits package they received over the hourly rate, and instances of permanent employees 

looking to become agency workers were rare. This demonstrates the appeal that a strong benefits package 

can have for employees. 

Members also heard that discussions were ongoi

benefits, such as online discounts and reduced ticket prices for events. 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

Retention strategies were used more frequently in the private sector than the public sector, but were 

considered by employees to have an effect on retention, with around one-

supporting certain measures that were used. The effectiveness of each individual method was considered, 

and the table below outlines this, (by the percentage of respondent who believed retention methods were 

It is worth noting that although an improved induction process received mixed results, a larger percentage 

of employees considered it more effective than ineffective. 

The evidence also supports an argument that improved pay can be responsible for the retention of staff. 

However, the Workforce and Organisational Development Manager confirmed that the overall package 

received by staff at London Borough of Hillingdon was very competitive. The pension contribution was 

unmatched, staff received better annual leave that the average, that increased after five and ten years of 

e employees also received four days of free parking, which was very rare in London 

The Committee’s previous review into Recruitment at Hillingdon recommended that the Council offer 

new employees a "Total Reward", that not only involved remuneration, "but also the total worth of the 

", and this is an area where the Council currently excels, offering competitive 

salaries, a good pension, and flexible working hours to ensure staff are able to enjoy a good work / life 

The Committee were informed that, with regards to remuneration, the benchmark salaries in key policy 

areas where monitored to ensure that neighbouring authorities did not increase pay and challenge the 

organisation for key employees. As such, the Council remained in the top quartile of social care payers, 

which eliminated money as a potential hurdle when employing, or retaining, staff in these key roles.

64% of current Council employees are on permanent contracts, but there were trends to suggest that 

y staff are actively looking to remain as agency workers, and not look for permanent employment. 

The Committee heard that, nationwide, workers are choosing higher pay rates over better job security, 

and despite not being eligible for pension contributions, agency staff were still able to receive annual 

leave and other benefits, while also having pay parity with permanent employees. However, the 

Workforce and Organisational Development Manager confirmed that long-term employees preferred the 

package they received over the hourly rate, and instances of permanent employees 

looking to become agency workers were rare. This demonstrates the appeal that a strong benefits package 

Members also heard that discussions were ongoing with the Employee Forum to review other staff 

benefits, such as online discounts and reduced ticket prices for events.  

 Page 16 

Retention strategies were used more frequently in the private sector than the public sector, but were 

-third of those surveyed 

ess of each individual method was considered, 

and the table below outlines this, (by the percentage of respondent who believed retention methods were 

results, a larger percentage 

The evidence also supports an argument that improved pay can be responsible for the retention of staff. 

onfirmed that the overall package 

received by staff at London Borough of Hillingdon was very competitive. The pension contribution was 

unmatched, staff received better annual leave that the average, that increased after five and ten years of 

e employees also received four days of free parking, which was very rare in London 

recommended that the Council offer 

but also the total worth of the 

", and this is an area where the Council currently excels, offering competitive 

salaries, a good pension, and flexible working hours to ensure staff are able to enjoy a good work / life 

The Committee were informed that, with regards to remuneration, the benchmark salaries in key policy 

areas where monitored to ensure that neighbouring authorities did not increase pay and challenge the 

emained in the top quartile of social care payers, 

which eliminated money as a potential hurdle when employing, or retaining, staff in these key roles. 

64% of current Council employees are on permanent contracts, but there were trends to suggest that 

y staff are actively looking to remain as agency workers, and not look for permanent employment. 

The Committee heard that, nationwide, workers are choosing higher pay rates over better job security, 

agency staff were still able to receive annual 

leave and other benefits, while also having pay parity with permanent employees. However, the 

term employees preferred the 

package they received over the hourly rate, and instances of permanent employees 

looking to become agency workers were rare. This demonstrates the appeal that a strong benefits package 

ng with the Employee Forum to review other staff 

Page 38



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

The staff intranet provides information on healthy living and employee wellbeing, both physically and 

mentally. The information includes activities that staff can undertake both inside and outside the office, 

and advertises and informs employees of the benefits of a healthy lifestyle and how it can impact upon 

work life, and the provision of wellbeing activities at the Council, such as 

considered beneficial for work culture.

Furthermore, the Employee Forum was involved in allocating money to improve the Civic Centre work 

environment such as upgrades to kitchens. A appealing work environment is considered a cont

factor to staff members' happiness, and it was important that staff had a say in where this money would be 

best allocated.  

Despite the appeal of a strong benefits package, this alone will not lead to the retention of all staff. It is, 

therefore, vital that the Council understands why high

organisation, and the easiest manner to do this is by conducting exit interviews to better understand why a 

member of staff has left the organisation. This was outlined in t

that the Council would begin conducting exit interviews in 2017, as well as monitoring feedback left from 

former staff members on 'Glassdoor', a website that allows former employees to review their old 

employers. 

The Committee heard that the Council's new 'exit interview' process was ready to be implemented in 

January 2018, and data will be collected from March 2018 onwards, helping the Council to understand if 

there were any specific trends in resignations. It must

exit interviews to understand the reasons behind a departure, these responses are often toned down or not 

wholly truthful, as former staff members require a good reference from their previous employers. 

However, anonymous feedback gives a more reliable record of feedback, and Glassdoor can provide this 

for an organisation. 

One effective form of staff retention is succession planning and the promotion of successful staff 

members, which also has the advantage o

therefore getting a return for investments in training and professional development for both the 

organisation and individual. This policy was highlighted in the previous review, which recommend

"the Council introduce and develop a workforce succession plan for all key roles within the 

organisation". This idea allows staff to see a clear path of advancement in their role and prevent them 

from becoming frustrated, or feeling like a job has 

staff and allowing them to see a bright future at the organisation.

In the light of increased competition for recruitment and competition for talent, organisations must now 

continue to develop their focus on staff retention to ensure high

rewarded for their hard work. The development and career progression of officers achieves this, while 

also fostering a culture of loyalty within employees.

Loyalty towards an employer is a very positive aspect of staff retention, and this positivity will improve 

the culture of an organisation. Furthermore, it was important to further this positivity with a focus on the 

work of the Council, and ensure that employees have a level of sel

for the organisation and engaging with, and helping, local residents. 

Work culture is an undervalued aspect of staff retention, and the ability for employees to work within the 

boundaries of cultural values and ideolog

leads to a happier workforce and employee satisfaction, which in turn encourages productivity. The 

London Borough of Hillingdon prides itself on putting residents first, and by encouraging this c

within the organisation, employees can recognise where their work has a positive impact on the lives of 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

The staff intranet provides information on healthy living and employee wellbeing, both physically and 

des activities that staff can undertake both inside and outside the office, 

and advertises and informs employees of the benefits of a healthy lifestyle and how it can impact upon 

work life, and the provision of wellbeing activities at the Council, such as yoga or cycle schemes, are 

considered beneficial for work culture. 

Furthermore, the Employee Forum was involved in allocating money to improve the Civic Centre work 

environment such as upgrades to kitchens. A appealing work environment is considered a cont

factor to staff members' happiness, and it was important that staff had a say in where this money would be 

Despite the appeal of a strong benefits package, this alone will not lead to the retention of all staff. It is, 

vital that the Council understands why high-performing staff may wish to leave the 

organisation, and the easiest manner to do this is by conducting exit interviews to better understand why a 

member of staff has left the organisation. This was outlined in the previous review, whereby it was stated 

that the Council would begin conducting exit interviews in 2017, as well as monitoring feedback left from 

former staff members on 'Glassdoor', a website that allows former employees to review their old 

he Committee heard that the Council's new 'exit interview' process was ready to be implemented in 

January 2018, and data will be collected from March 2018 onwards, helping the Council to understand if 

there were any specific trends in resignations. It must, however, be noted that while companies conduct 

exit interviews to understand the reasons behind a departure, these responses are often toned down or not 

wholly truthful, as former staff members require a good reference from their previous employers. 

ver, anonymous feedback gives a more reliable record of feedback, and Glassdoor can provide this 

One effective form of staff retention is succession planning and the promotion of successful staff 

members, which also has the advantage of building on existing staff members' skills and training, and 

therefore getting a return for investments in training and professional development for both the 

organisation and individual. This policy was highlighted in the previous review, which recommend

the Council introduce and develop a workforce succession plan for all key roles within the 

". This idea allows staff to see a clear path of advancement in their role and prevent them 

from becoming frustrated, or feeling like a job has become stale, while also rewarding high

staff and allowing them to see a bright future at the organisation. 

In the light of increased competition for recruitment and competition for talent, organisations must now 

on staff retention to ensure high-performing talent are both retained and 

rewarded for their hard work. The development and career progression of officers achieves this, while 

also fostering a culture of loyalty within employees. 

r is a very positive aspect of staff retention, and this positivity will improve 

the culture of an organisation. Furthermore, it was important to further this positivity with a focus on the 

work of the Council, and ensure that employees have a level of self-fulfilment that comes with working 

for the organisation and engaging with, and helping, local residents.  

Work culture is an undervalued aspect of staff retention, and the ability for employees to work within the 

boundaries of cultural values and ideologies is vital to any organisation. A positive work atmosphere 

leads to a happier workforce and employee satisfaction, which in turn encourages productivity. The 

London Borough of Hillingdon prides itself on putting residents first, and by encouraging this c

within the organisation, employees can recognise where their work has a positive impact on the lives of 

 Page 17 

The staff intranet provides information on healthy living and employee wellbeing, both physically and 

des activities that staff can undertake both inside and outside the office, 

and advertises and informs employees of the benefits of a healthy lifestyle and how it can impact upon 

yoga or cycle schemes, are 

Furthermore, the Employee Forum was involved in allocating money to improve the Civic Centre work 

environment such as upgrades to kitchens. A appealing work environment is considered a contributing 

factor to staff members' happiness, and it was important that staff had a say in where this money would be 

Despite the appeal of a strong benefits package, this alone will not lead to the retention of all staff. It is, 

performing staff may wish to leave the 

organisation, and the easiest manner to do this is by conducting exit interviews to better understand why a 

he previous review, whereby it was stated 

that the Council would begin conducting exit interviews in 2017, as well as monitoring feedback left from 

former staff members on 'Glassdoor', a website that allows former employees to review their old 

he Committee heard that the Council's new 'exit interview' process was ready to be implemented in 

January 2018, and data will be collected from March 2018 onwards, helping the Council to understand if 

, however, be noted that while companies conduct 

exit interviews to understand the reasons behind a departure, these responses are often toned down or not 

wholly truthful, as former staff members require a good reference from their previous employers. 

ver, anonymous feedback gives a more reliable record of feedback, and Glassdoor can provide this 

One effective form of staff retention is succession planning and the promotion of successful staff 

f building on existing staff members' skills and training, and 

therefore getting a return for investments in training and professional development for both the 

organisation and individual. This policy was highlighted in the previous review, which recommended that 

the Council introduce and develop a workforce succession plan for all key roles within the 

". This idea allows staff to see a clear path of advancement in their role and prevent them 

become stale, while also rewarding high-performing 

In the light of increased competition for recruitment and competition for talent, organisations must now 

performing talent are both retained and 

rewarded for their hard work. The development and career progression of officers achieves this, while 

r is a very positive aspect of staff retention, and this positivity will improve 

the culture of an organisation. Furthermore, it was important to further this positivity with a focus on the 

fulfilment that comes with working 

Work culture is an undervalued aspect of staff retention, and the ability for employees to work within the 

ies is vital to any organisation. A positive work atmosphere 

leads to a happier workforce and employee satisfaction, which in turn encourages productivity. The 

London Borough of Hillingdon prides itself on putting residents first, and by encouraging this culture 

within the organisation, employees can recognise where their work has a positive impact on the lives of 

Page 39



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

residents.  

Many staff members work with local residents off

who travel from place to place to work with residents or local organisations have very different working 

days from many employees, and it was important to ensure that they are able to be as productive as 

possible in, what can sometimes be, a challenging atmosphere.

Many roles, including social workers, receive very flexible working proposals at other local authorities, 

and that by also offering more flexible working arrangements, the Council could improve 

competitiveness, both when attracting and retaining staff.

With new technological trends and ways of working, organisations can ensure that they modernise with 

the workforce, and flexible working can provide an important tool for retaining talented employees. 

Happy staff members are more likely to be engaged, more productive, and more

organisation, and flexibility continues to play an important role in the worklife of the newest generation 

of workers. 

Research from Page Personnel into the differing expectations of younger workers suggest that nearly 60% 

of 18-27 year olds expect flexible working to be offered by all employers to all employees, rather than 

being seen solely as a benefit, while 80% believe that flexible working would be fairly or very important 

to them when considering a role. Some reports suggest that mil

workforce by 2020, so the need for organisations to modernise to attract and retain employees becomes 

even more crucial. Furthermore, survey results that same age range of employees would choose flexible 

working options over an increase in salary. Flexible working is more popular in today's digital age, and 

can impact on workers of all age, from young millennials to older employees with families.

It is accepted that allowing flexible workers is not viable and many 

opportunity to work in this manner. However, for some employees, such as social care workers, mobile 

and flexible working can be very beneficial and allow for increased productivity as it decreases travel 

time and therefore can allow more visits or help to be given to residents, thus improving the service that 

can be provided by the Council. 

Private sector perspectives

To gain further evidence, the Committee agreed that short survey regarding staff induction and retention 

practices should be sent out to local private companies in the Borough of a medium to large size, to better 

understand the approaches taken by them to staff induction and retention. 

The complete survey is in the appendices, but key responses are detailed below.

● Organisation’s success are the result of talented employees and it is essential that new starters feel 

fully integrated into the business and culture from their first day;

● A combination of face-to-face and online training is used in staff induction, and it

refined based upon staff feedback;

● Staff induction can be tailored to different roles. Although the foundation of the induction can be 

the same for all staff, managers can tailor the training to suit the employee;

● Staff retention is achieved by rewarding high

financial or non-financial, including training career development, training opportunities

healthy and wellbeing incentives.

● Staff must be kept engaged and informed on what is happening w

  

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

Many staff members work with local residents off-site, not in an office environment. Those staff members 

ce to work with residents or local organisations have very different working 

days from many employees, and it was important to ensure that they are able to be as productive as 

possible in, what can sometimes be, a challenging atmosphere. 

ing social workers, receive very flexible working proposals at other local authorities, 

and that by also offering more flexible working arrangements, the Council could improve 

competitiveness, both when attracting and retaining staff. 

l trends and ways of working, organisations can ensure that they modernise with 

the workforce, and flexible working can provide an important tool for retaining talented employees. 

Happy staff members are more likely to be engaged, more productive, and more

organisation, and flexibility continues to play an important role in the worklife of the newest generation 

into the differing expectations of younger workers suggest that nearly 60% 

ds expect flexible working to be offered by all employers to all employees, rather than 

being seen solely as a benefit, while 80% believe that flexible working would be fairly or very important 

to them when considering a role. Some reports suggest that millennial employees will make up half the 

workforce by 2020, so the need for organisations to modernise to attract and retain employees becomes 

even more crucial. Furthermore, survey results that same age range of employees would choose flexible 

ons over an increase in salary. Flexible working is more popular in today's digital age, and 

can impact on workers of all age, from young millennials to older employees with families.

It is accepted that allowing flexible workers is not viable and many employees will not need the 

opportunity to work in this manner. However, for some employees, such as social care workers, mobile 

and flexible working can be very beneficial and allow for increased productivity as it decreases travel 

allow more visits or help to be given to residents, thus improving the service that 

Private sector perspectives 

To gain further evidence, the Committee agreed that short survey regarding staff induction and retention 

es should be sent out to local private companies in the Borough of a medium to large size, to better 

understand the approaches taken by them to staff induction and retention.  

The complete survey is in the appendices, but key responses are detailed below. 

Organisation’s success are the result of talented employees and it is essential that new starters feel 

fully integrated into the business and culture from their first day; 

face and online training is used in staff induction, and it

refined based upon staff feedback; 

Staff induction can be tailored to different roles. Although the foundation of the induction can be 

the same for all staff, managers can tailor the training to suit the employee;

by rewarding high-performing employees, and these rewards can be 

financial, including training career development, training opportunities

healthy and wellbeing incentives. 

Staff must be kept engaged and informed on what is happening within the organisation.

 Page 18 

site, not in an office environment. Those staff members 

ce to work with residents or local organisations have very different working 

days from many employees, and it was important to ensure that they are able to be as productive as 

ing social workers, receive very flexible working proposals at other local authorities, 

and that by also offering more flexible working arrangements, the Council could improve 

l trends and ways of working, organisations can ensure that they modernise with 

the workforce, and flexible working can provide an important tool for retaining talented employees. 

Happy staff members are more likely to be engaged, more productive, and more inclined to remain at an 

organisation, and flexibility continues to play an important role in the worklife of the newest generation 

into the differing expectations of younger workers suggest that nearly 60% 

ds expect flexible working to be offered by all employers to all employees, rather than 

being seen solely as a benefit, while 80% believe that flexible working would be fairly or very important 

lennial employees will make up half the 

workforce by 2020, so the need for organisations to modernise to attract and retain employees becomes 

even more crucial. Furthermore, survey results that same age range of employees would choose flexible 

ons over an increase in salary. Flexible working is more popular in today's digital age, and 

can impact on workers of all age, from young millennials to older employees with families. 

employees will not need the 

opportunity to work in this manner. However, for some employees, such as social care workers, mobile 

and flexible working can be very beneficial and allow for increased productivity as it decreases travel 

allow more visits or help to be given to residents, thus improving the service that 

To gain further evidence, the Committee agreed that short survey regarding staff induction and retention 

es should be sent out to local private companies in the Borough of a medium to large size, to better 

 

Organisation’s success are the result of talented employees and it is essential that new starters feel 

face and online training is used in staff induction, and it is constantly 

Staff induction can be tailored to different roles. Although the foundation of the induction can be 

the same for all staff, managers can tailor the training to suit the employee; 

performing employees, and these rewards can be 

financial, including training career development, training opportunities, or 

ithin the organisation. 

Page 40



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

Findings & Conclusion

Councillors believed that the induction processes were fit for business, and any changes were continuing 

to move the process in the right direction. It was agreed that the new e

improvement, the recent changes to the induction system made for a much more well

suitable induction system for new staff members, and there was good balance between the less glamorous, 

but fundamental information required in an inducti

induction system to an individual's needs as necessary. Therefore, it was recommended that:

1 
Officers continue to review the induction process where necessary, and make 

improvements as required, to 

for new employees. 

 

In the tough economic climate that currently faces Local Government, the Committee agreed it was 

difficult to currently offer pay increases or improved financial terms to staff 

important that the Council considered other approaches to promote the wider staff benefits on offer. It 

was considered that the Council must continue to offer popular and enjoyable benefits that interest staff 

members, and thus continue to help create a work atmosphere that appeals to employees. As such, it is 

recommended that the Council: 

2 
Review the current staff benefits package offered to employees with Employee 

Forum, to ensure it remains competitive and relevant to 

 

In addition to those staff benefits that were available, it was also considered important that the 

organisation provided enjoyable and helpful activities to ensure that staff members were engaged and 

aware of the importance of both menta

have offers of activities to allow them to encourage healthy living both inside and outside the workplace, 

and developing these offers to ensure they were relevant and helpful to staff members 

beneficial, while also ensuring that the offers of activities were also popular with employees. Having 

considered all the evidence, Members recommended that:

3 
Human Resources work with the Employee Forum to further develop the Health 

and Wellbeing activities available to staff.

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

Findings & Conclusion 

 

Councillors believed that the induction processes were fit for business, and any changes were continuing 

to move the process in the right direction. It was agreed that the new e-learning system was a 

improvement, the recent changes to the induction system made for a much more well

suitable induction system for new staff members, and there was good balance between the less glamorous, 

but fundamental information required in an induction process, and the flexibility needed to tailor the 

induction system to an individual's needs as necessary. Therefore, it was recommended that:

Officers continue to review the induction process where necessary, and make 

improvements as required, to ensure that the induction process remains suitable 

 

In the tough economic climate that currently faces Local Government, the Committee agreed it was 

difficult to currently offer pay increases or improved financial terms to staff regularly, and as such, it was 

important that the Council considered other approaches to promote the wider staff benefits on offer. It 

was considered that the Council must continue to offer popular and enjoyable benefits that interest staff 

us continue to help create a work atmosphere that appeals to employees. As such, it is 

Review the current staff benefits package offered to employees with Employee 

Forum, to ensure it remains competitive and relevant to staff interests.

In addition to those staff benefits that were available, it was also considered important that the 

organisation provided enjoyable and helpful activities to ensure that staff members were engaged and 

aware of the importance of both mental and physical wellbeing. Members agreed that employees should 

have offers of activities to allow them to encourage healthy living both inside and outside the workplace, 

and developing these offers to ensure they were relevant and helpful to staff members 

beneficial, while also ensuring that the offers of activities were also popular with employees. Having 

considered all the evidence, Members recommended that: 

Human Resources work with the Employee Forum to further develop the Health 

g activities available to staff. 

 Page 19 

Councillors believed that the induction processes were fit for business, and any changes were continuing 

learning system was a notable 

improvement, the recent changes to the induction system made for a much more well-rounded and 

suitable induction system for new staff members, and there was good balance between the less glamorous, 

on process, and the flexibility needed to tailor the 

induction system to an individual's needs as necessary. Therefore, it was recommended that: 

Officers continue to review the induction process where necessary, and make 

ensure that the induction process remains suitable 

In the tough economic climate that currently faces Local Government, the Committee agreed it was 

regularly, and as such, it was 

important that the Council considered other approaches to promote the wider staff benefits on offer. It 

was considered that the Council must continue to offer popular and enjoyable benefits that interest staff 

us continue to help create a work atmosphere that appeals to employees. As such, it is 

Review the current staff benefits package offered to employees with Employee 

staff interests. 

In addition to those staff benefits that were available, it was also considered important that the 

organisation provided enjoyable and helpful activities to ensure that staff members were engaged and 

l and physical wellbeing. Members agreed that employees should 

have offers of activities to allow them to encourage healthy living both inside and outside the workplace, 

and developing these offers to ensure they were relevant and helpful to staff members would be 

beneficial, while also ensuring that the offers of activities were also popular with employees. Having 

Human Resources work with the Employee Forum to further develop the Health 

Page 41



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

Members noted the importance of modernising the Council where necessary, not just to continue to 

compete with neighbouring authorities and organisations for staff, and the move towards flexible working 

was considered important in this regard. Flexible and 

certain roles and departments and aid productivity in these areas, and further exploration of suitable 

flexible and mobile working methods should take place to understand whether these measures could help 

improve the service provided by the Council. 

Councillors recognised that the flexible working hours at the Council were appealing to many employees, 

but also noted that flexible working was becoming more common in many work places, and that both 

flexible and mobile working were considered very attractive to new employees in today's society. 

The Committee, therefore, recommended that: 

4 
Consideration be given to refresh the Council's mobile and flexible working policy 

to indicate how we support technology enabled working practices targeted within 

appropriate services. 

 

Members recognised the importance of the work employees do to put re

to a high standard. These services impact on the lives of thousands of local residents, and it was important 

that staff were aware of the impact they are having on the people of Hillingdon.

If employees feel valued and proud of the work that they do, it will not only improve the employer 

branding strategy, a recommendation from the previous review, but it will also improve the staff turnover 

rate. 

Furthermore, it was vital for staff to understand the culture and values of

day, but they must also be supported throughout their time at the Council, and Members recognised that 

the loyalty and support was a two-way relationship between employees and the employer.

As such, the Committee felt that the Council must continue to support employees who wish to further 

themselves and support their development where possible. This opportunity for further training or support 

allows staff members to feel valued and gives them an opportunity to development 

professional capacity that benefits both staff members and the Council.

With this in mind, Councillors recommended that:

5 
Provide clarity around the Council's culture and values as an employer, including 

focus on professional development, which are key to candidates' decision

when choosing a new employer. 

 

  

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

Members noted the importance of modernising the Council where necessary, not just to continue to 

compete with neighbouring authorities and organisations for staff, and the move towards flexible working 

was considered important in this regard. Flexible and mobile working could be beneficial to employees in 

certain roles and departments and aid productivity in these areas, and further exploration of suitable 

flexible and mobile working methods should take place to understand whether these measures could help 

improve the service provided by the Council.  

Councillors recognised that the flexible working hours at the Council were appealing to many employees, 

but also noted that flexible working was becoming more common in many work places, and that both 

and mobile working were considered very attractive to new employees in today's society. 

The Committee, therefore, recommended that:  

Consideration be given to refresh the Council's mobile and flexible working policy 

to indicate how we support technology enabled working practices targeted within 

appropriate services.  

Members recognised the importance of the work employees do to put residents first, and deliver services 

to a high standard. These services impact on the lives of thousands of local residents, and it was important 

that staff were aware of the impact they are having on the people of Hillingdon. 

roud of the work that they do, it will not only improve the employer 

branding strategy, a recommendation from the previous review, but it will also improve the staff turnover 

Furthermore, it was vital for staff to understand the culture and values of the organisation from their first 

day, but they must also be supported throughout their time at the Council, and Members recognised that 

way relationship between employees and the employer.

t the Council must continue to support employees who wish to further 

themselves and support their development where possible. This opportunity for further training or support 

allows staff members to feel valued and gives them an opportunity to development 

professional capacity that benefits both staff members and the Council. 

With this in mind, Councillors recommended that: 

Provide clarity around the Council's culture and values as an employer, including 

focus on professional development, which are key to candidates' decision

when choosing a new employer.  

 Page 20 

Members noted the importance of modernising the Council where necessary, not just to continue to 

compete with neighbouring authorities and organisations for staff, and the move towards flexible working 

mobile working could be beneficial to employees in 

certain roles and departments and aid productivity in these areas, and further exploration of suitable 

flexible and mobile working methods should take place to understand whether these measures could help 

Councillors recognised that the flexible working hours at the Council were appealing to many employees, 

but also noted that flexible working was becoming more common in many work places, and that both 

and mobile working were considered very attractive to new employees in today's society.  

Consideration be given to refresh the Council's mobile and flexible working policy 

to indicate how we support technology enabled working practices targeted within 

sidents first, and deliver services 

to a high standard. These services impact on the lives of thousands of local residents, and it was important 

roud of the work that they do, it will not only improve the employer 

branding strategy, a recommendation from the previous review, but it will also improve the staff turnover 

the organisation from their first 

day, but they must also be supported throughout their time at the Council, and Members recognised that 

way relationship between employees and the employer. 

t the Council must continue to support employees who wish to further 

themselves and support their development where possible. This opportunity for further training or support 

allows staff members to feel valued and gives them an opportunity to development in both a personal and 

Provide clarity around the Council's culture and values as an employer, including 

focus on professional development, which are key to candidates' decision-making 

Page 42



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

Terms of Reference

The following Terms of Reference were 

 

1. To review the current employee induction process at both junior and senior levels and how 

employees become a culture fit within a democratic organisation;

2. To review the retention rate / turnover of st

retention of staff;  

3. To seek out examples of best and novel practices from the private, public and other sectors in both 

induction arrangements and how organisations seek to retain high calibre staff;

4. To make positive recommendations to the Cabinet on any improvements in working practices or 

operations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

Terms of Reference 

 

The following Terms of Reference were agreed by the Committee from the outset of the review:

To review the current employee induction process at both junior and senior levels and how 

employees become a culture fit within a democratic organisation; 

To review the retention rate / turnover of staff and activity currently in place to support the 

To seek out examples of best and novel practices from the private, public and other sectors in both 

induction arrangements and how organisations seek to retain high calibre staff;

ake positive recommendations to the Cabinet on any improvements in working practices or 

 Page 21 

agreed by the Committee from the outset of the review: 

To review the current employee induction process at both junior and senior levels and how 

aff and activity currently in place to support the 

To seek out examples of best and novel practices from the private, public and other sectors in both 

induction arrangements and how organisations seek to retain high calibre staff; 

ake positive recommendations to the Cabinet on any improvements in working practices or 

Page 43



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

Witnesses & Committee Activity

The Committee received evidence from the following sources and witnesses:

 

Witness Session 1 - 25 

July 2017 

Mr Mike Talbot, Workforce & Organisational Development Manager, 

London Borough of Hillingdon

Witness Session 2 - 21 

September 2017 

Mr Luke Broome, Trainee Internal Auditor, London Borough of 

Hillingdon

Witness Session - 7 

November 2018 

Mr Mike Talbot, 

London Borough of Hillingdon

Survey 
A survey into views on staff induction and retention conducted from 

28 November 2017 to

 

 

 

  

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

Witnesses & Committee Activity

 

The Committee received evidence from the following sources and witnesses: 

Mr Mike Talbot, Workforce & Organisational Development Manager, 

London Borough of Hillingdon 

Mr Luke Broome, Trainee Internal Auditor, London Borough of 

Hillingdon 

Mr Mike Talbot, Workforce & Organisational Development Manager, 

London Borough of Hillingdon 

A survey into views on staff induction and retention conducted from 

28 November 2017 to 1 January 2018 to 30 local businesses

 Page 22 

Witnesses & Committee Activity 

 

Mr Mike Talbot, Workforce & Organisational Development Manager, 

Mr Luke Broome, Trainee Internal Auditor, London Borough of 

Workforce & Organisational Development Manager, 

A survey into views on staff induction and retention conducted from 

2018 to 30 local businesses 

Page 44



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

TBC 

  

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

References 

 

 Page 23 

Page 45



 

 

 

 

 
 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention 

TBC 

A Review of Employee Induction and Retention - January 2018 

Appendices 

 

 Page 24 

Page 46



 

Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 4 January 2018 
 

Part I – Members, Public and Press 
 
 

 

 

CABINET FORWARD PLAN 

 
Contact Officer: Luke Taylor 
Telephone: 01895 250 693 

 
REASON FOR ITEM 

 
The Committee is required to consider the Forward Plan and provide Cabinet with any comments it 
wishes to make before the decision is taken. 
 
OPTIONS OPEN TO THE COMMITTEE 

 
1. Decide to comment on any items coming before Cabinet. 

 
2. Decide not to comment on any items coming before Cabinet. 
 

INFORMATION 
 
1. The Forward Plan is updated on the 15th of each month. An edited version to include only items 

relevant to the Committee’s remit is attached below. The full version can be found on the front 
page of the ‘Members’ Desk’ under ‘Useful Links’. 

 
SUGGESTED COMMITTEE ACTIVITY 

 
1. Members decide whether to examine any of the reports listed on the Forward Plan at a future 

meeting. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



Ref Upcoming Decisions Further details Ward(s)

Final 

decision 

by Full 

Council

Cabinet 

Member(s) 

Responsible

Officer 

Contact for 

further 

information

Consultation 

on the 

decision

NEW 

ITEM

Public / 

Private 

Decision 

& 

reasons 

218b The Council's 

Budget - Medium 

Term Financial 

Forecast 2018/19 - 

2022/23 BUDGET & 

POLICY 

FRAMEWORK

Following consultation, this report will set out the 

Cabinet's proposals for the Medium Term 

Financial Forecast (MTFF), which includes the 

draft General Fund reserve budget and capital 

programme for 2018/19 for consultation, along 

with indicative projections for the following four 

years. This will also include the HRA rents for 

consideration. Subject to Cabinet's decision, the 

budget will then be referred to full Council for 

approval.

All 22-Feb-18 Cllr Ray 

Puddifoot 

MBE & Cllr 

Jonathan 

Bianco

FD - Paul 

Whaymand 

Public 

consultation 

through the 

Policy 

Overview 

Committee 

process and 

consultation 

with 

businesses 

& 

ratepayers

NEW Public  

212 The Schools 

Budget 2018/19

Cabinet will asked to agree the Schools Budget 

for the next financial year, following a 

recommendation from the Schools Forum.

All Cllr David 

Simmonds 

CBE, Cllr 

Jonathan 

Bianco & 

Cllr Ray 

Puddifoot 

MBE 

FD - Peter 

Malewicz

Schools 

Forum

NEW Public  

213 The Council's Print 

Contracts

Cabinet approval will be sought to renew current 

print contracts following a procurement exercise. 

It is proposed the print services tender will be split 

into 3 lots. Lot 1 - general print services; Lot 2 - 

printing of Hillingdon People magazine and Lot 3 - 

combined Lots 1 & 2. 

N/A Cllr Richard 

Lewis

FD - Paul 

Soward

NEW Private 

(3)

SI = Standard Item each month                                                                                                                                Council Departments:  RS = Residents Services    SC = Social Care   

Cabinet - 15 February 2018

P
a
g
e
 4

9



P
a
g
e
 5

0

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 4 January 2018 
 

Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

WORK PROGRAMME 2017 - 18 
Contact Officer: Luke Taylor 
Telephone: 01895 250 693 

 
REASON FOR ITEM 
 
This report is to enable the Committee to review meeting dates and forward plans. This is a 
standard item at the end of the agenda. 
 
 
OPTIONS AVAILABLE TO THE COMMITTEE 
 

1. To confirm dates for meetings; 
 

2. To make suggestions for future working practices and/or reviews.  
 
 
INFORMATION 
 
All meetings to start at 7.30pm 
 

Meetings  Room 

15 June 2017 CR4 

25 July 2017 CR4 

21 September 2017 CR4 

10 October 2017 - CANCELLED CR4 

7 November 2017 CR4 

4 January 2018 CR4 

1 February 2018 CR4 

7 March 2018 CR4 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 51



 

Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 4 January 2018 
 

Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

2017 - 2018 DRAFT Work Programme 
 

15 June 2017 Minor Review I - Future Review Topics & Scoping Report 

Update Item - Crossrail Town Centre Development 

Report - Council Apprenticeships Scheme 

Update Item - LBH action on Modern Slavery Act 

Update on Previous Review - Tackling Social Housing Fraud 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 

 

25 July 2017 Report - Homophobic Bullying in Schools 

Budget Planning Report for Administration and Finance Directorates  

Minor Review I (Employee Induction & Retention) - E-Learning 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 

 

21 September 2017 Minor Review I (Employee Induction & Retention) - First Witness Session 

Minor Review II - Future Review Topics & Scoping Report 

Report - Safety at Sports Grounds 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 

 

7 November 2017 Review I (Employee Induction & Retention) - Recommendations 

Review II (HBT Bullying) - First Witness Session 

Update on Review Implementation - Safety at Civic Centre 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

Page 52



 

Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee - 4 January 2018 
 

Part I – Members, Public and Press 

 

 
 

4 January 2018 Review I (Employee Induction & Retention) - Draft Final Report 

Review II (HBT Bullying) - Second Witness Session 

Draft Budget Proposals Report for Administration & Finance 2018/19 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 

 

1 February 2018 Review II (HBT Bullying) - Final Report 

Draft Budget Proposals 2018/19 - Comments from Policy Overview 
Committees 

Update Item - Heathrow Business Rates 

Report - Lighting at the Civic Centre 

Report - Resident Feedback & Broadcasting 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 

 

7  March 2018 Update on Review Implementation - Recruitment in Hillingdon 

Report - Best use of space at the Civic Centre 

Report - Council ICT for Staff 

Report - Volunteering in Hillingdon 

Cabinet Forward Plan 

Work Programme 

 

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 7 November 2017
	5 'Homophobic, Biphobic & Transphobic Bullying' Review
	6 2018/19 Budget Proposals for Services within the remit of Corporate Services & Partnerships Policy Overview Committee
	Item 6 - Draft Budget Proposals for Administration & Finance - Appendix A

	7 'Employee Induction & Retention' Review
	Item 7 - Employee Induction & Review - Appendix A

	8 Forward Plan
	Item 8 - Forward Plan

	9 Work Programme 2017/2018

